A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, March 13, 2012
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 3-9-12

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 March 13, 2012
Regular Meeting

AGENDA

Pledge of Allegiance

1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items logether
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action
adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 28, 2012.

3. Old Business

None.

4, New Business

a. Consideration of entering into closed session to discuss records and information
concerning the security and safety connected with the municipal electric system.
(Possible closed session) (Rice)

b. East Side Transmission Substation project authorization. (Rice/Dine)
C. Consideration of exercising an Option to Purchase Groleau Property.
(Rice/Dine)
d. Consideration of authorizing an Engineering Services Contract with GRP Engineering,

Inc. for the East Side Transmission Substation. (Dine)

e. Consideration of authorizing an Engineering Services Contract with GRP Engineering,
Inc. for the East Side Transmission Line. (Dine)

f. Consideration of authorizing a Procurement Agreement with Delta Star, Inc. for the
purchase of one 138/69kV 90/120 MV A transformer for the East Side Transmission
Substation Project. (Dine)

g. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order for three 138kV CT/PT metering units for
the East Side Transmission Substation Project. (Dine)

h. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order for two 69kV 50K VA transformers for the
East Side Transmission Substation Project. (Dine)




Light and Power Board 3 March 13,2012
Regular Meeting

5. Appointments

None.
6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Verbal update re: recent storm outage. (Rice)
C. From Board.

7. Public Comment

/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, February 28, 2012

Board Members -

Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Patrick McGuire, John Snodgrass, John
Taylor, Linda Johnson, Mike Coco

Ex Officio Member -

Present: R. Ben Bifoss

Others: Ed Rice, W. Peter Doren, Tim A ‘ phanie Tvardek, Jim Cooper,

Glen Dine

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by.Chairman Coco.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calen

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Bt

Services Contract with GRP Engineering for

Moved by Johnson, secon y McQGuire, that the Light and Power Board authorize the
Chairman and Secretary to execute an agreement for professional services with GRP
Engineering, Inc., for a total fee not to exceed $290,000 including expenses for design and
construction management services for the South Side Distribution Substation Project; subject to
approval as to substance by the Executive Director and approval as to form by Counsel,

Further, authorizing the Executive Director to execute work orders for professional services and
administer amendments and change orders that are in the best interest of the Light and Power
Department.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Janice Hicks, 1687 David Place, Non-Ratepayer
Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Street, Ratepayer




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 February 28, 2012

Roll Call:

Yes — Budros, Carruthers, McGuire, Taylor, Johnson, Coco
No — Snodgrass

CARRIED.

3(b). Consideration of adopting a Resolution in Support of a Bayfront Revitalization Legacy
Project.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Ben Bifoss, City Manager
Gary Howe, Parks and Recreation Commission C

incoln Street, Ratepayer

Moved by McGuire seconded by Johnson, that the Lig
Session immediately to discuss the privileged and confidential attorney-
regarding the Resolution in Support of a Bayfro >

:& Power B d\enter into Closed
ent communication

Roll Call:

No — None

CARRIED unanimously. .

Commission 11 consider a recor menda ;"“n,for revenue bond ﬁnancmg pursuant to City
Charter Section*179(k) taking the contribution‘authorized by this Resolution into account.”

Moved by Johnson, sé
Resoluuon in Support of Bayfr
..act favorably on..

ded by Taylor to amend the motion and approve the original
evitalization Legacy Project which includes the language

Johnson proposed a friendly amendment to her motion with the support of Taylor, so the
language in the sixth paragraph of the Resolution will read “...will favorably consider a
recommendation for revenue bond financing pursuant to City Charter Section 179(k) taking the
contribution authorized by this Resolution into account.”

CARRIED unanimously.

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Budros, that the following language be added to the proposed
Resolution: “Whereas, Traverse City Light & Power Board assures the residential ratepayers that
a $1,000,000 contribution for a Legacy Project will not be the cause of a rate increase and hence
residential rates will be frozen at the current level for the 2012-2013 fiscal year.”




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 February 28, 2012

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Doug Luciani, TC Chamber of Commerce & TBEDC President/CEQ, 202 E. Grandview

Motion amended by McGuire with the support of Budros to remove the word “...residential...”
so all classes of customers are included in the freezing of rates.

Therefore, the motion before the Board is as follows: “That the following language be added to
the proposed Resolution: ‘Whereas, Traverse City Light & Power Board assures the ratepayers
that a $1,000,000 contribution for a Legacy Project will not be the cause of a rate increase and
hence rates will be frozen at the current level for the 2012-2013 fiscal year.’”

Roll Call:

Yes — Budros, Carruthers, McGuire, Snodgrass, Taylor, J
No - Coco ‘

CARRIED.

Board discussion continued on the amended motion.

Commissioner Carruthers called the question on the motion, seconded by McGuire :
Roll Call:

Yes — Budros, Carruthers, M
No — Coco

Chairman Coco restated the amended motion before the Board: “That the Light & Power Board
support the Resolution in Support of a Bayfront Revitalization Legacy Project including the
change ‘Whereas, if these funds are needed for such projects and they are included in an
approved capital plan, the City Commission will favorably consider a recommendation for
revenue bond financing pursuant to City Charter Section 179(k) taking the contribution
authorized by this Resolution into account.’”

Roll Call:

Yes — Budros, Carruthers, McGuire, Taylor, Johnson
No — Snodgrass, Coco

CARRIED.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 4 February 28, 2012

3(c). Consideration of approving a Letter of Understanding Regarding Operations Audit of
TCLP.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Ben Bifoss, City Manager

Doug Luciani, TC Chamber of Commerce & TBEDC President/CEQ, 202 E. Grandview

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Snodgrass, that the Light & Power Board approve the Letter
of Understanding Regarding Operations Audit of TCLP.

uage in the third paragraph of
d RFQ to the City and TCLP
the City and TCLP for

sure a timeline and RFQ

Budros proposed a friendly amendment to the motion, that the lat
the Letter of Understanding read “TBEDC shall present the
for approval.” and “TBEDC shall present its recommend
approval.” and “The RFQ shall specify the Operations Audit shal

Carruthers accepted the friendly amendment with 1

Therefore, the motion before the Board;c,;,;‘,
the Letter of Understanding Regarding |

) Q which results in
member and one City

CARRIED.

Commissioner Budros departed t

w Business

Item 4 on the Agenda bemé‘

John Taylor made the following disclosure: He is President of SEEDS, a party to Agenda Item
4(a). Taylor indicated he will be refraining from voting upon or otherwise participating in the
making of the decision.

4(a). Consideration of authorizing a Business Energy Management Services Contract with
SEEDS.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Jim Cooper, Manager of Communications & Energy Services

Mike Powers, SEEDS
Ed Rice, Executive Director




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 5 February 28, 2012

Moved by Johnson, seconded by Coco, that the Board authorize the Chairman and Executive
Director to enter into a Consulting Agreement with SEEDS, in the amount not to exceed $34,500
for Business Energy Management Services; subject to approval as to substance by the Executive
Director and as to form by General Counsel.

Roll Call:

Yes — Carruthers, Snodgrass, Johnson, Coco
No — McGuire

CARRIED. (Budros absent)

John Taylor abstained and refrained from voting upon or othery articipating in the making of

a decision on Agenda Item 4(a).

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

nUp Green Up event on March 11, 2012.

b

ced an ;iiticle titled “Neighborhoods powered by parks
site.

blic Comment

Item 7 on the Agenda bein
No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman Coco declared the meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m.

Edward E. Rice, Secretary
/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




SONDEE
&CINE@DORENM

A T T O R N E Y 5

RONALD W. SONDEE 310 WEST FRONT STREET

JOHN P RACINE IR SUITE 300
W. PETER DOREN TRAVERSE CiTY MICHIGAN 49684
JOHN A. MACNEAL
MAURICE A BORDEN TEL {231) 947-0400
FAX (231) 947-0748

www sondeeracine com

March 8, 2012

Via Email & First Class Mail

Mr. Ed Rice

Executive Director

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Streect
Traverse City, MI 49686

Re:  Closed Session
Dear Ed:

I understand that you wish to go into closed session at next Tuesday’s meeting to discuss
records or information regarding the security and safety connected with TCL&P’s municipal electtic
system. Such material is exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(y). As such, you may

go into closed session with the Board to consider such material and to discuss it under MCL
15.268(h). A two-thirds roll call vote is necessary.

The following agenda item would be appropriate:

Consideration of records and information concerning the security and safety
connected with the municipal electric system (possible closed session).

Sincerely,

SONDEE, RACINE & DOREN, PLC

W, P Do

W. Peter Doren

WPD:ils




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

Sl 1972

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board ff ;E

From: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 6, 2012
Subject: Project Authorization Request — East Side Transmission Substation and

69kv Transmission Line Projects

Staff has prepared a packet of information and is requesting authorization from the L&P
Board for staff to continue with the development, design and construction of the East Side
138/69kv Transmission Substation and 69kv Transmission Line Projects. Both projects
are identified in the L&P Capital Plan and were unanimously approved by the Board on
August 9, 2011 as a staff Objective to support the Board’s Strategic Goal #4 “Provide a
high level of transmission and distribution system reliability.” (See attached). This project
has been actively worked on by staff through-out calendar year 2011.

Details for these projects are included in your packet. Staff will be prepared to answer any
questions.

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the 138/69kv East Side Transmission
Substation and 69kv Transmission Line Projects, necessary expenditures, and various
agreements in order to provide safe and reliable transmission service to its customers.
If the Board concurs, the following motion is appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE STAFF TO PROCEED WITH
THE 138/69 kv EAST SIDE TRANSMISSION SUBSTATION PROJECT AND 69kv
TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AND SEEK THE NECESSARY BOARD
APPROVALS FOR EXPENDITURES AND AGREEMENTS.

10




A
&

?

(@

S oo o0 T o

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER 2011 Strategic Goals & Objectives

Investing Our Energy In You

Ensure employee and public safety.

Achieve APPA safety accreditation by 12/31/12

Map location of all TCL&P electric underground facilities by 12/31/12
Customize TCL&P electric line engineering standards by 12/31/12
Rehabilitate 1 substation distribution circuit per year for the next 10 years
Develop and implement a service center disaster drill by 7/1/12

Revitalize TCL&P Safety Committee by 12/31/11

Resolve long term baseload requirement deficiencies.

Evaluate long-term baseload power supply options and make recommendations upon completion of

a public input process.
Complete evaluation of the Kalkaska Combustion Turbine and make recommendations by 12/31/11

Evaluate emerging and existing MPPA projects
Insulate customers from volatile power market prices while keeping rates competitive.

Analyze the application for an Energy Supply Risk Management policy by 6/30/12

b. Analyze Demand Side Management for commercial and industrial customers and make

© oo T oo

recommendations by 6/30/12

Determine the Renewable Energy Credit (REC) financial benefit to TCL&P through 6/30/12
Manage TCL&P’s Distribution, Transmission and other Operating Expenses ($10.5m) to limit a 1%
annual increase (including inflation) through 2015

Manage Purchase Power Generation expenses to not exceed $21,500,000 per year through 2014

Provide a high level of transmission and distribution system reliability.

Finalize and implement a disaster recovery plan by 6/30/12

Rehabilitate 1 substation distribution circuit per year for the next 10 years

Engineer and construct the East Side Transmission Project by 12/31/13

Engineer and construct the South Distribution Substation Project by 6/30/13

Replace 2000 feet per year of old and failing primary underground distribution cable per year for

the next 5 years



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM LIGHT & POWER

Project Name: 138/69kv East Side Transmission Substation and 69kv Transmission Line

CIP: $5,200,000

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: March 13,2012

Board Action: Approved Not Approved No Action

Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes

Goals and Objectives: Target Completion date of December 31, 2012

Project Description:

Construct a new 90/120/150 MVA 138/69kv transmission substation and connect to ITC’s
138kV transmission system. Also jointly construct with Consumers Energy 4.1 miles of 69kv
transmission line to connect the new transmission substation to TCL&P’s existing 69kv
transmission system located on Parsons Road.

The major TCL&P substation equipment will include: (1) 138kV circuit switcher, (1) power
transformer, (2) 69kV breakers, 69kV switches, control house with equipment, and aluminum

bus with supporting structures.

The major 69kv transmission line facilities will include poles, conductor, and line post insulators.

Reference: Exhibit A, Exhibit B, Exhibit C, Exhibit D, Exhibit E and Exhibit F
Project Purpose and Necessity (Problem We Are Solving):

The TCL&P transmission system is a dedicated MISO transmission asset that, therefore, is
required to meet specific FERC reliability standards. TCL&P currently receives approximately
$2.0 M / year in revenue as a result of joining MISO and for complying with the reliability
standards.

MISO in conjunction with TCL&P performed an analysis of the TCL&P electric system and
determined that there are certain conditions under which the TCL&P electric system does not
meet the reliability standards. TCL&P has submitted in conjunction with ITC (the regional
RTO), the East Side Substation and Transmission Projects to MISO to remedy the reliability
standard issues. This submission was analyzed by MISO through their MISO Transmission
Expansion Planning (MTEP) process.

12




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM % LIGHT & POWER

The purpose of this process is to ensure that MISO transmission projects meet the FERC
reliability standards, are financially sound and meet prudent utility planning criteria, thus
resulting in a safe and reliable transmission system. In December 2010, the MISO Board of
Commissioners, located in Indianapolis, Indiana, after significant review, APPROVED the
TCL&P/ITC projects.

Of particular importance during the MISO system analysis review, their load studies conducted at
MISO showed that under certain TCL&P single contingency conditions, segments of the TCL&P
electric system would experience high loading conditions that would result in loss of load for an
indefinite period of time. This violates MISO/FERC reliability standards. MISO concluded that
the East Side Projects remedied the conditions and would bring TCL&P into compliance with the
necessary reliability standards. MISO therefore approved the projects in December 2010.

Reference: Traverse City Light and Power Transmission Planning Criteria, Christopher M.
Bzdok, Mayor, Letter of October 27, 2010; Peter Schimpke, MPPA Email of December 2, 2010
MTEP 2010 Approval of TCL&P Projects

Project Benefits:

The East Side Transmission Substation and Transmission Line Project Benefits:
- meet MISO/FERC reliability standards
- relieve overload conditions on the TCL&P transmission system
- costs are recovered through Attachment O filing with MISO
- provides increased reliability to TCL&P system and the area transmission network
- provides for the safety and well being of the public
- provides necessary transmission service for existing and future load growth

Other Alternatives:

Having received Board Approval of the 2009 Capital Plan which included the NEW East Side
Substation and Transmission Projects, the planning criteria on the east side of the TCL&P system
required a new 138kV connection to the existing ITC 138kv transmission line including property
for the necessary facilities, and a transmission corridor for TCL&P to construct 4.1 miles of

transmission line.

Alternative sites for substation facilities and the 138kv tap were analyzed and determined to: (a)
require additional expenditures, (b) damaging to the view shed of East Grand Traverse Bay, (c)
located near established residential areas, (d) difficult winter accessibility, (e) require
significantly more site preparation due to the existing hilly terrain, (f) difficult to accommodate
the needed 138kV tap.

13




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM LIGHT & POWER

The only reasonable transmission corridor available was to jointly use the existing 4-Mile Road
and railroad corridor with Consumers Energy.

Timing of Project (Why Now):

In 2010 the MISO Board of Commissioners voted and approved the necessary TCL&P and ITC
projects. In 2011 TCL&P completed survey work, environmental site assessment, land division,
site plan development, and obtained approvals from East Bay Township. ITC and TCL&P are
currently completing final design and beginning material procurement. TCL&P will be
proceeding with closing on the purchase of property within the next couple weeks and is in the
process of preparing for spring construction activities.

MISO/FERC requires TCL&P to meet reliability standards. Reliability issues have been
identified as early as 2006 that have not been remedied. Continued non-compliance could result
in fines or penalties imposed on TCL&P. Indications were given to MISO that remedies would
be in place in 2009. TCL&P has extended this to December 31, 2012 with MISO. Further
delays may be problematic, not to mention that TCL&P’s transmission system remains at risk for
substantial loss of load.

Reference: Exhibit D, and East Bay Township Planning Commission Findings of Fact

14




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM % LIGHT & POWER

Project Timeline Gant Charts

SUBSTATION COSTS Quantity Cost Expected Board Approval Date
e Property - 500k March 2012
e Site Work - 250k March 2012
e Transformer 1 1,525k March 2012
e Circuit Switcher 1 37k March 2012
e Circuit Breakers 2 70k March 2012
e 138kv Metering CT/PT 3 56k March 2012
e Relaying/control panels 1 66k March 2012
e Control House 1 52k Contractor to furnish
e Other Misc Equipment/work - 66k N/A
e Substation Const. Confract 200k May 2012
e SS Transformer 2 72k March 2012
e Survey, Environmtl, Borings 17k Completed
$2,911k
e [Engineering/Design/Const Mgmt 228k SUBSTN Design Apprvd Nov
2010 - $158.5k
¢ Contingency 55k

$283k

SUBTOTAL $3,194K

TRANSMISSION COSTS Quantity Cost Expected Board Approval Date
e Poles - 595k May 2012
e Conductor - 158k May 2012
e Insulators & Hardware - 217k May 2012
e Survey, Environmtl, Borings 22k Completed
e Construction Contracts - 843k June 2012
e Railroad Monitoring - 65k September 2012
$1,900k
e Engineering/Design/Const Mgmt 145k March 2012
e Contingency (10%) 188k
$333k

SUBTOTAL $2,233k

PROJECT TOTAL §$5.427M

Engineering Preliminary Project Cost Estimate: $5.43M




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM % LIGHT & POWER

Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance as planned for. Bonding will not be required.
Financial Benefits/Implications:

These projects have received approval from MISO and qualify as transmission assets that allow
TCL&P to be reimbursed from revenues received by MISO for transmission service. Each year
TCL&P is required to file financial statements known as an Attachment O filing with MISO.
TCL&P currently receives approximately $2M/year from MISO. The new TCL&P investment in
transmission facilities will increase annual revenue by approximately $650,000 per year subject
to annual adjustments in Attachment O filings with MISO. The project will pay for itself in
approximately ten years and bring in additional revenues beyond that on a depreciated value
basis.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

Existing labor force will operate (TCL&P System Control Center) and perform normal monthly
substation inspections (Line Department). Major Substation equipment can last as long as 50
years with proper maintenance and normal loading conditions. The major maintenance activities
on this type of substation is for periodic preventive maintenance and testing of the power
transformer, breakers, and circuit switcher, generally on a five year cycle at a cost of
approximately $30,000 for outside services.

Staff Recommended Board Action:

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the 138/69kv East Side Substation and 69kv
Transmission Line Projects, necessary expenditures, and necessary agreements with Consumers
Energy and ITC/METC in order to provide safe and reliable transmission service to all its

customers.

Attachments:

Exhibit A Substation Site Rendering
Exhibit B Transmission Line Route Map
Exhibit C Transmission Line Rendering
Exhibit D Certificate of Survey

Exhibit E Support Letters

Exhibit F Site Plans

Project Gant Charts

16




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FORM LIGHT & POWER

East Bay Township Planning Commission Findings of Fact

Traverse City Light and Power Transmission Planning Criteria

Christopher M. Bzdok, Mayor, Letter of October 27, 2010

Peter Schimpke, MPPA — Email of December 2, 2010 — MTEP 2010 Approval of TCL&P Projects

17




EXHIBIT A

SWITCH YARD AND SUBSTATION
SITE RENDERING

18




Switchyard & Substation Site

Existing Site



0¢

Switchyard & Substation Site

Rendering after Construction



EXHIBIT B

TRANSMISSION LINE ROUTE MAP

21




-

LEGEND
PROPOSED 69kV

TRANSMISSION LINE ROUTE

DELINEATES LINE

POLE OWNERSHIP

MNew East S vde

SECTION

Transmission
e b Subtretow
, : S z il :r;" - "‘."'- ; e -J . ; Location
W GRP TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER NUVBER | NUMBER
TRAVERSE CITY oK WP En inee"in Inc. MISCELLANEOUS ENGINEERING TRAVERSE 0|TY, MICHIGAN
e o TE | SR e oy e EXHIBIT B - TRANSMISSION LINE ROUTE MAP b B
o O Eowray b You DATE 193UED FOR GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN, 616-942-7183

i

27




EXHIBIT C

TRANSMISSION LINE RENDERING

23




L4

East Transmission Line
4 Mile Road

Existing Poles



(&)

East Transmission Li
4 Mile Road

ne

Rendering after Reconstruction



CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

20




S

(— CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Aibert Courtade Road, Traverse City, Ml
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R1OW,
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

49696

I, the undersigned, being a Professional Surveyor, hereby certify that | have surveyed ond mopped
the above parcel of lond, thot the ratio of closure of the unadjusted field observations Js noted,
and within fimils ond that | have fully complied with the regulations of Act 132, P.A. 1970 os
omended. The bosls for bearings is: Michigon Sfate Plane Coordinale System,

(NADB3) (CORS96), Centrgl Zon
Error of Closure is 1:5000+

A [N
Dovid P. Gillette 7

P.S. §41916

o

Tx:4024331

2011S-00036
STATE OF MICHIGAN
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
RECORDED
10/07/2011 3:38 pM PAGE 1 OF 2
PEGGY HAINES REGISTER OF bEEDS

/ / NORTH — SOUTH 1/4 LINE
SO1°10'56"W

" . 1332.66'
North 1/4 Corner
Section 28, T27N, R10W
G.T. Co. Remon (L003, P435)
N40W 18.17" Found Spike in 5" Ash
] / /1 NI5E 10.98" Found Spike in 6" Twin Mople
/ S20% 20.05" Found Spike in 16" Ash
/ S41% 30.69° Found Spike in 14" Ash

! | EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 Monument Found

/ / / OF THE NORTHEAST 1/2 OF

N67°43'52"E 6.04°
From 1/16 Corner

&

&

QJQ J
CENTER POST FOUND

AND ACCEPTED IS
S84°03'21"W 11.99'
] FROM INTERSECTION OF

THE NORTHWEST 1/4
[ 1y $01°05'03”"W \\1 1333.30'
¥ N I 5 ') —

. 519.41 ’

i / P 813.89

S/ TOWER
g. < ) s 12 431
g S / | 2 Pge & PARCEL "A
= - S = g, 6.59 ACRES
S 3| ES i (2
5 E= % :
s g/ 5T U0
g P = P
g K s ’9@ Q’
5 N EONING
33 / / N a2 (S o
B 8) @9/1
] ! '
) VI =TT
5 | //d)o \ N00%59'11"E | 266785
< %)
s | % /8 LNE 4’%’9@ BEGINNING ®©
T PROPOSED 66-FOOT EASEMENT : €N N
g ow FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS AND % I
s 3, FOR THE INSTALLATION AND
3 S MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC UTILITIES e \ ’
- &l S ToweR
B REMAINDER PARCEL &
z I ’ 50.85 ACRES 85 |
- N 3l S
3 N Northwest Corner o l
E: ] 3 Section 28, T27N, R1OW E
i - G.T. Co. Remon (L003, P439) . S
g ] || NGSE 63.46" Found Nal in NW face of 18" Bosswood / F gt 1/ e
”g’ S22°E 68.32' Found Spike in W face of Power Pole 193.80° GT. Co. Rem;n (LOZ)3 P859)
kS l , S43W 115.70" Found Spike in SE face of Power Pole NT8W 74.12' po's{
< -S57°W 60.39" Found Spike in S face of Light Pole N15° 174.10" Power Pole
o ' S00°47'29"°w SBFE 32.91" Found Iron & Cap §13030
'g [ I W 325.00' ? 545% 101.10° Po er Pole l
s ] =l g2 o or
5 >
2 l 4 ?::3 5 Sl& BEGINNING
E Q 6'
2 T —81643— P8 s5op— |2 i
s I — —138525 — T o —
g F S00°%47'29" W 2670.46°
5 C/L Four Mile Road (66%)
E

LEGEND Date: 11/11/2010
@D MONUHENT FOUND (R)  RECORDED Scafe: AS NOTED
© IRON FOUND O IRON SET Orawn: WWA.
A NAIL FOUND A NAL SET ChK'ds JA.
= Y000 STAKE FOUND 3 WOOD SYAKE SET Rev.:
: Sheet: 1 of 2

Job No.: 2010720.02

Gosling GCzubak 5oner

sngineerlng sciences, Iac. * Environmental

1 1280 ac";ym:; i’ark Drive Services
raversa 9686-8607 .
231-245-9181 8009561062 ﬁiﬁﬂ;@i’:ﬁw

for: 231-941-4603

21




1 - CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, Ml 49696
NORTH 1/2 OF THE MW 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R10W,
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

N

ESCRIPTION = PARCEL "A”

County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along said 1/8 line S88°24'26"E 1238.30 feet 1o the
Liber 200, Page 499) N42°21°25"E 490.70 feel; and NAZ°12'09"E 58248 feet fo the Eost line of

ulilities described as follows:

County, Michlgan, more fully deseribed as’ follows:

from the Point of Ending.

PARENT PARCEL_DESCRIPTION

From First Americon Title Insurance Company Commitment No. TC-09-3088

The North one-half of tha Northwest one—quarier of Sacilon 28, Town 27 North, Ronge 10 West

South 75°32'30" East, 213.75 feef; thence South 61°51* East, 217,01 feet, along the center ime;

Polnt of Beginning,

with said Norlh one-sixteenth line of Section 28 fo the Point of Baginning,
Subject 1o fhe right of way of 4 Mile Road and Hammond Road.

REMAINDER PARCEL DESCRIPTION

County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

right~of-way (recordad in Libar 200, Page 499) N42°21"25°F 490.70 feol; and N42°12°0
172 of the Northeast 1/4 of tha Northwest 1/4 of said Seclon 28; thence along said East line

acres of land, more or less.

Subject fo the right of woy of Four Mils Road and Hammond Road.

~Data\TCL&P Topography\dwg\Certified Survey Groleau.dwg Tab: Sheet 2 Saved by: magraf 09/13/1%, 5:18pm  Flotted by: magraf 09/14/11, 2:32pm

with and 50.00 feet fo the Southeast of the cenferline of an existing overhead alectric transmission line right-of-wa
the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4
of the Northwest 1/4 of soid Secllon 28; thence along said East line SO1905°03'W 813.89 feet o said Norfh 1/8 line; thenca along

said 1/8 line N8824'26"W 706.78 faet fo ihe Point of Beginning, conlaining 6.59 acres of land, more or lass.

Commencing at tha Norihwest Cornar of said Section 28; ihence along the West line of sald section S00°47
the Norih 1/8 fine of sald section and the Polnt of Beginning; thence 66.00 feet North of and contiguous
described line: olong the North 1/8 line of said section SB8524'26"E 1238.30 fuet fo the Point of Ending, the sidelines of the

abova easement shorten or langthen 1o originate of the West lne of sald Sectlon 28 and Jo terminale at a line bearing N42°21°25"E

along sold cenfer line and fhe arc of a 544.86 foot radius curve to the lofl, the chord of whic
215,65 feel; thence South 84°40°40” East, 916.12 feet dlong the sald cenlerline; thence South 84°34'55” East, 211.87
center ling o the East ona-elghth fine of sald section i thence South 0°25" East, 1032.67 fest along sal
the North one~eighth line of sald Seciion 28; thence North 89°14'25" West, 1288.10 fest along sald North one-eighth line o the
North and South quarler Iing of sald Sactlon 28; thencs Norih 83°17'50" West, 650.94 feet along said North on
west line of sald East half of the Northwest quorler of the Norfhwest quarler; fhence norih 0°00'257 Wasl, 1333.23 feet along said
West line to sald North Sectlon line and cenfer Iine; thence South 89°14' East, 208.80 fest, along sald North Setciion

Also, EXCEPT, that part of the Northwest one-quarler of the Northwest one-quarfer of Section 28, Town 27
more fully described as: Commencing af the Northwest corner of Seclion 28; thencs South 00°52745”
West line of sold Section 28 1o the Point of Beglnning; thence confinuing south 00°52'45" East, 325.00 fest along said West ling of
Section 28; thence North 89°49'30" Fost, 300.00 fest parallel with the North one-sixteenth line of sald Sactfon 28; thence Norlh
00°52'45" West, 325,00 foot porallel with the sald West line of said Section 28; fhence South 89°49'30" West, 300,00 feet parallel

Baglnning af the Northwsst Corner of sald Section 28; thence along the West llne of sald section SO0°47*
SBB30°16°E 300,00 feef; thence SO0°47'29"W 325.00 faol; thence NBE°30'16"W 300.00 feat fo said West section line;
said section line SO0°47°29"W 193,80 fest fo the Norih 1/8 line of said section; thence along sald 1/8 line $88°24*
fash; thence paraltel with and 50.00 feef o ihe Southeast of the cenferllne of an existing overhead electric iransmission line

92 E 582,48 feel to the East line of the West

North line of soid Section 28; thence along soid Norih line N38°21°09"W 1951.91 fest fo the Polnt of B

Part of tha North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 Norih, Rangs 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West fine of said section SO0°47'29"W 1335.23 feet to
Point of Beginning; thence parallel
y (recorded In

Together with a proposed sasement, 56.00 fast In vidih, for Ingress and agress ond for the installalion and maintenance of public

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwast 1/4 of Sectlon 28, Township 27 Norlh, Range 10 West, Eost Bay Township, Grand Traverse

EXCEPT, that part of the North one~half of the Northwest one-quarter lying with In the followlng parcel described os lying Sautherly
of a Counly Road, more fully described as: Commencing of the North quarisr comer of said Section 28; thance North 89°14" West,
442,00 fest along the North line of said Seclion 28 to the cenler line of county road and the Potnt of Beginning; thence
Southeasterly, 215.79 feet along sald center Ihe and the orc of o 451.52 fool radius curve fo the right, the chord of which bears
thence Southeasterly, 217.06 feet

h bears South 73°15'50" East,

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Sectlon 28, Township 27 Norh, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse

NO1°05°03"E 519.41

'29°W 1335.23 feet to
with the feilowing

d East one~eighth line fo

e~eighth line to the

Norlh, Rangs 10 West,
East, B16.43 feof dlong the

29"W 816.43 feol; thence
26"E 1238.30

eglnning, contalning 50.85

feet along said

line to the

thence clong

feet o the

&
3
<
=
S
15
5
=
Q.

Date: 11/11/2010 Enoi

: 4 * Engingers

oo o TED GoslingGzubal Sdrees

Chk'd: J.'A.J engineering sclences, Inc, » Environmental

Res e G sy L Sorvioes

{1 raverss fy i .
PR 800-358-1062 ﬁiggf}‘;z‘,’:m

dfb No.t 2010720.02 Sheet: 2 of 2 Fox; 2314414603 )

28




EXHIBIT E

LETTERS OF SUPPORT

29




[raverse /rea [lecreation
and Transportation Trails Inc.

November 15,2011

Glen Dine, Chief Engineer
Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

PO Box 252

Traverse City, MI 49685 Dear Glen,

The Traverse Area Recreation and Transportation Trails, Inc. (TART) is aware of
Traverse City Light & Power’s (TCL&P) proposed East Side Substation and
Transmission Line project parallel to the TART Trail. TART is supportive of
TCLP’s approach to utility service that incorporates the use and sharing of existing
corridors, including the TART Trail and rail corridor.

TART and TCL&P have a long history of working together for the greater good of
Because the Traverse City community. We at TART believe that the project proposed by
Trails TCL&P supports the community by providing electrical service reliability that the
Mattor Traverse City area has come to enjoy and expect from its hometown utility.
The pole line that TCL&P is proposing to build down the railroad corridor will
affect the traffic flow on the TART Trail during construction. Based on joint
discussions, both parties are committed to a collaborative effort that will result in a
controlled construction schedule, trail rerouting as needed, and notification to the

public that meets the needs of TART users, the public, and TCL&P.

I look forward to closely working with TCL&P on this project. Please let me know
when I can be of additional assistance.

A S/incer@Ly\z\ o
4 N
L — g /\w/\> . . /A\M:‘},‘M;}J

Julie Clark /|
Executive Director

-

Cc: Scott Howard, Board President

30




Fej o - 5 P
FOF3 st Poinadl Road

oo Aanp ME 3020

December 6, 2011

Traverse City Light & Power
Attn: Ed Rice

1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

Mr. Rice,

Per our discussion, Consumers Energy and Traverse City Light & Power continue to work
together to develop agreements supporting the joint use of the existing 46 kV Hammond Road

line owned by Consumers Energy.

The project proposed by Traverse City Light & Power was reviewed as patt of the MISO
Midwest Transmission Expansion Process (MTEP)-10 of which Consumers Energy provided
stake holder comments. In an effort to use existing facilities, Traverse City Light & Power
requested to jointly occupy Consumers Energy's 46 KV pole line (Hammond Road line) along
Four Mile Rd from a point 1300 ft south of Hammond Road to Consumers Energy's junction for

the tap to it's O-AT-KA distribution Substation.

We continue to work on joint occupancy agreements, agreements for appropriate property rights
and permits required prior to beginning construction.

Sincerely,
6% ol € T‘J\,&uc };L» byv’\
O

Richard E. Loughlin
Director System Planning & Reliability Programs

cc:  JRAnderson, CE
RPGluszewski, CE
DCParker, CE

31




EXHIBIT F

SITE PLANS




£@LL-ZY6-BLD 'NVOIHOIN "SCIdVHE ONVED O] GO v 0, W A1nus) dac) Bulpsmal
LoseEo-al XIANI SNIMVYHG 2 ‘dVIN NOLLYQO1 “133HS ILL £B00-0CH-ICZ NYOLHOIN *AMSOLId S o]
L NVOHOMN ‘ALID SSEEAVHEL 3N NOISSINGNVEL ONV NOLLVISENS 'GHVAHOLIMS 3aiS 1Sva "ouj ‘bupssuibuz ——— ng ”xmamumum “ﬂmﬁ
SNMVEQ | 1oarOue d3IMOd ANV LHIIT ALID 3ISH3IAVHL d¥9 o 9
o

dVA NOILVYOOT

NGLLYI01 NOUVISENS
F QHVAHOLAS 305 1SY3

S0 WIS ¥ 304
KA WY1 ONRBONGH 2US NOUYISENS 2 (RVAHOUNG
SNOUYATT ONDOQNGY ZUIS NOUMISENS ¥ QIVAUWS
SNOUVATT TILONKIS =~ QMVAROLAS QUi

SHOUVATT TNLIMMIS = NOUNISENS 4%ial B-AU

ROLJESI0 SNwed oNSd

X3ANI SNIMVHA

no uj ABreug inQ Buyseau

dAMOd S LHDI'T

ALID 3IS¥IAVHL

SNV'1d 4lIS - 4 1IdiHX43
ANIT NOISSINSNVHL %
NOILV1SENS ‘AdVAHOLIMS 3dIS L1Sv3

NVOIHOIN ‘ALI0 ISHIAVHL

d3dMOd % LHIIT
ALID 3SHIAVHL

33



(Y
[
_,:Bm m _ L .
202680102 Kl ST, 10 Uapiogs
“of jouforg n aL4. X
o ! e
LB P dsuimoL AT 153 52 OF OB ‘GO L UM 'GE LGS O 1S SOMGLION 30 2/T ION W) JO By . \
el A / & WS AN 07 O
OF-L00°GZZ-E0 DNV
83 40 DsoUs P Q0L MITI. 0,10 ' .
50, 3541 ‘o0z oart !
1285
o Pt Aoy Aug 1503 Yo 01 ouny 'YHON 22 GsUROL ‘BT UOIDS JO . h
1

NOTT1¥2530 H3vd

gﬁ - - %@Pﬁ
el WNMH\JT!

2

330 pue IRIFY AIK) 9sIAALAL

NOLLVIS-H1S A0IS ISvA
SNOLLIGNOGD ONLESIXE

AN2W3SYA 1003~99 (3S0d0¥d

|
awvis !
Torwds 3NI0 | w |
200 91,
h.:nl!incmnl o BLOLSEN | z
| |
— g T |
M W ”l.p ae«‘ms.mnzu.mcu_muxg “ _
sph > c; |
it § S8 L
(o =oAL
& £ g © E
bl ¥ i § _ m ! =
Fa LN g I 1§18
TR N
P . \ \ . | [
sbo¥ \ A R E v e IR
A [
= e !
¥ /f _
M M F] Lty TRODNSEOY [GINGT M
3 D0-500-B22-€0 T30kVd _
g 3 v |
= I |
. |
r UINHOD 91/4 KoM N _
7€) 3,50,014808, \ |
aNG3 NOW) yd
s !
m a9 &8 o mm m _ __
o) s g8 & !
m_m Sl I
¥ 8 ix |
S : i
S 4 X |
- 4
5] |
j \ p |
- - X ._ ]
o /gr 2 |
P— ~— 3 (,99) pooy puowoy 1/5 |
- T T e— |
//II/ /:/ ljt”’]f‘lllllll.ll !
———— L e~ T~ L
S5 T08¢ TR LI - =Y S B
—~— ) TS

34

e NP B gy by P pin 4 e s S 1




(——Y
patg

072680102
o8 Js{ord
—

a3m0 pue iy A1) asseAed),
NOLLVIS-gNS XAIS ISVA
NVId XIS

mepon

> |

]
o B e
B ek

. R AT

: Meguzphuffsoy

gine
owz;msﬁ

Y

Vg
4
HIANYOISNVHL

IR M A |

A

e

RSN
R

T

B e o T
k% A0S Q#ﬂ..#ﬁ

X

A.é&.sz: ‘
YCONYT (500U 1

PR LIk

JorEd i

Do

1nds @S04o8d \

.

() voe
TAIO-HON Q10400

aNVYLS
30NY¥dS 3SNAd

30 NOSSHSRAL
AUl @0dYd

() vawy

R R

GNVLS

SV3HY I19VARIG-NON

spuag oy

I

I

1

|

40_._.0memOmU ANNOdINOD VIIdAL

JOVOBNS ONYE
1l SSY13 GHIVENOD

JAVI0ENS. ONYS
1 551 MUSYdHGY

LYOHITY QALIVINOI
GUIIOK-WIZ TOUN L9

amgon
SYIHY I1GVARID
NOILOIS-SSOMD ANNOJINOD TYIIJAL




Bk | 3/ M C
Bor _ / : :
llllllllll A ¥ 11504 - | 7 J S

i > Ly .
RN 7y N S I e Tt e TRV AU IR S s - Y e P
N g Er e ringige A R e e i R e . =~
ST TR e TR g e
. by =Y oy IV "- YA, !n.ﬁ‘- el e O e - = 01 |

VA MG =P
v ‘*a \x » V ; ﬂ NH§.- ST e

il

1) 9sIaseay,
vy N ke e sy sy YAy a0 s B

JFan0g pue 398y A1
NOLLVIS-HN1S JAAIS ISVI

AVId SNIaOVHD

EH 098 = AT AS
K G3HSINI 3SOd0¥d
. N

-

IIIII

g ¥
£ @
] o
__J
—
7
4
sssssssss
m Naeg
uoz;m,xu
e
X
IZ67S] e
o8 or 0 s
T <7
A1 R
OF = anos I e
......
e <,
b
,,,,,,,
|||||||||||| SIB0Ia Ly Tk
— oM BIARIS (E51GAL




DOA S =L
‘ZHOR 0S =1 2 TS
AIJONFT ACMIALAG

JAIYA FONVILINT

2asog pue STy A7) osseaeay,
NOLLV.IS-31S JdIS ISva

R T

o]

CEGRAT S TR T AU
n m‘.ciuﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁiﬁ“ﬂ

&%ﬂflﬁﬁ?.

B Hgﬂ%

moEm b FE Em oRE kB mmAm TR A TEERY Q va EEERE % TETEN:
)
ATE
_ | * L Ll 1]
| W 2z 2z
— * Bla gla
2z 4 M
— T e (442 30V (05000 Bla mu HE
zlz .
Big mz
HE

S O 208

WOIIOR§ AUMOALI( [UOTdAY,

AN Ty !S_Sﬁ‘-l.ﬁv.. "

i} J’ S A

() u_s
KA QXCa0e

&

SN 3N S m
TONVNAM QMY HOLVTIVISNI ORY
"SSI0A SN HOE JNUGST D00

ANVLS
30NddS 3SN3Q

. RS- == BN v
—— \ =
Lt e i i i o= ___<_.3__ ___11\”’ A /a& ‘ k
(k0 704 50 7 lﬁl’ Y(‘Lﬁ@! =)
& 0

g

g
g
]
=
N

@& JUR N

—_——
i
——_—

37

s e gy e W pde s s me e

==

——




aaaaa
uuuuuuuuuu
AAAAA

e 38y A1) oS

samog pm
NOLLVIS-H1S IAIS ISVA
AVId ddVISUNVE

ANVLS
30NddS 3SNIQ

J0NYdS 3SN3d

Ahmd0= 100}
41 HosanshnLL

38



39

. SNOLLVASE WHNLONKLS - NOLLYLSENS dB1oL Severotrisz oo AR oo —— 3 N e

i . “waisin e — T T =

ol NVOHOIN ‘ALO SSHAAVEL N1 NOISSINGNVELL ONV NOLLYLSENS 'GBYAHOLIMS 3GS 1573 “ouj ‘Bujissuibuz e — L M e SANOLS wﬁmwmf
o e

oMMV | Lomron d3IMOd ANV LHOIT ALID ISHIAVHL di9 o °

MWB a ms.

L1l

W% AL oH

EaH]




ol | s SNOLLYAST “WWHNLONKLS - QHVAHOLIMS oLl eI ORI Aoz e S Lae]
- . SRt 0N 1 i
NVSHOW ‘ALIC SSHEAVEL NT1 NOISSINSNVHL GNV NOLLYISENS 'GHVAHOLIMS 345 15v3 ouj ‘Buiiseuibuzg T Y 20 20 e |t ] MO KL
HISNNN | YIEANN R P
ONMVEG | Lo3rond H3IMOd ANV LH9IT ALID ISHIAAVHL da® T &
AL.T.-.»L. TS ,.ell,»vu.» s
-4 ey s 0-§ D-5 ey -3¢ 04
% m 5
M S8 Ry -8 -8 ) ] o= - w.
1, 4. X 2 A % 'z Py 2 pe pe
£ -
D=)=0 v
KR AIRES
Coy 5 TE 05 g “ " “ o LT “ 5 i r
= L3 3. a'_ i1 2.l CIR| A—nﬂ. 3. I} L3
| ) J
adile Y Iy
:
¥ Al X, i 08512 5 i - 3 08512 r
.—"u*(lllu. _r T & X\J NH, < ; J A \ _
T ﬁ B X 3 [x 3 z ﬂ M
d =N
FIJWH
&
it T .am —,.u zaﬂ%uwn B
s s o T3 i T TR T 3 1 Fa | o
q]add e I - _ |
= gt SF ,
a 3
iny 854-2
H. - - 0651-2
T 2 x\ & T. Nﬁ N .ﬁ: A l
1] o] @] s 3 3 ]
L7
L— ] g o
Ehv .

40




L0016 dol
104 MINBGD MR STEL

£00YD TUVARILNS |

006 dOL
Tod MaER) At

26106
ONYIS 3004dS 35N30 ONLSIG

CB1L~Z¥6-019 'NVGIHOIN “SQ1avil ONVHD "ol Qe va o ) v oy B
14 - SNOLLVATIE ONIHIANZYH LIS NOLLYLSENS ® QUYAHOLIMS .:.1?“.@3 NI ﬁv_mma ey i e | \eey M T MO S LHOLT
NVOHOIN ‘AL FSHIAVEL N1 NOISSINSNVHLL GNY NOLLY.SENS 'GHYAHOLIMS 3aiS 15v3 QUj ‘DuissBUIBUg % Aire ariavad
HISNN | HISWON wm &
ONMYa | 1o3rod d3IMOd ANV LHIIT ALID ISHIAVHL dd9 e
;. — 5 — | -
| i " oTraL arce.
0 HOUYATT VeINYD RULYATT VG
ouoee 3003 }
J00'DR 30vE) 00049 NoLvISEns
00DLY JOL
of 70 M9 d¥DL /\
ST, oNsha 00018 GOL
F10d HINUCO MEQ d¥IL
T10d FWNLIKS INI GY30 SR
| J6sl 1‘_
I 8 |
_ WTTBL JUEBL
n HOWYATTY i NOUYATTY YHINVG
20258 3000 F\\\\\\I&VA\\\\ Py — .
00242 dot b¥
2 T0d M ot IS0K TOHINGD 9l : .\
STYL oNUSHa 00816 dOL
T10d KIS 2 CNVIS 30N¥4S 3530 SNUSIG
1 59 s
E 4178 h - ATRBL
HOUVAIT wadrvd NOLYATT L3t
058 3D

41



47

cd 1056001 MZIA NV'Id DNIHEANTH 3LIS NOLLYLSENS 2 QHYAHOLIMS S Cnstcachics b Apeoian e Lo
vy | sy | A SSEAVHL 2N NOISSINSNVEL GNV NOLLVSENS ‘GEVAHDIIMS G5 15V3 "ouj ‘Bupsesuibuz SRS
S, | e HIMOd ANY LHOIT ALID ISHIAVHL d49 = ,
s Y oot .
\.W iAi.iviviwA. gl
s | | BN BT Qs
sl e .
- e
. N e fgsﬁlL
. N
Ty
m o / ¥
| ) awis /Y V.
| _. B 30NddS N30
| ) p / —
| | S e S _
i
“_ _ J T _
| | 4 _
]
; N HVHD D 0350d08d ~\
““ m “ oA tp— AN \ " ~
i
| " _ ONYLS /A
| | 30nus N30 |
1
| | e s |
! | | .
| ]
! | |
“, weE | !
h 1
a8 o £ _ -
aNviS NG
| 30NYdS 3SNIA ‘ N
Y- 10- (RO | " Ow
~\ 3NN NOISSIRSNWE ! nvmu\ »\/M\
HINHOSSNYY. ‘ fb\ y
i
i
lllllll H
1




1-q STV.LIA IOVNDIS B JON3d R N TR e —— T  — ka,.OanMwaO;M
NVOHOW ‘ALK SSHANVHL 3N NOISSPSNVELL GNY NOLLYLSENS ‘GHVAHOLIMS Sais 15v3 “ouj ‘Buissuibuzg w
Bl Ha!
oNMvIG | Loarons d3MOd ANY 1HOIT ALID ISHIAVHL D =
3OS ON

ONLOOS ALTHINGD ../

{'dAL) ONIANL TS
CEZINVATWD LNi%Z%,T

S oNSSYeisauL|
/ ON

;
o I\
4Nds aoom

ONIBIL TIUS NTVO LXK ‘\

ONWOGS ZUIUINOD J— JIVIS ON
I/ §HVIiSa NOIS 3AHa §8399V

ar 8y
é_ﬁa.%l/ BT A B e q
P 15 I ALD ISHIAVML
Gk Btoama | A s |
Dliey | | e ||
e T ]

43



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
EAST SIDE SUBSTATION
PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

RPN [Task Name Start Finish R s ot e = s o= S e W) _— = ;2013
I AL B R . A November 2011 February 2012 | " March 2012 _April 20 1 May 2012 ! ! Seplember 20121 cto
i[5 Site Approval Tus 12/6/[1  Tue 12/13/11 T
Preliminary Design Wed 12/7/11 Fri 2/3/12
3 Bid Power Transformer Wed 12/14/11 Tue 2/7112 ——
4 Develop Specifications Wed 12/14/11  Wed 12/21/11 3
|5 Bid to pre-selected Bidders Thu 12/22/11 Thu 1/26/12
G Bid Opening Thu 1/26/12  Thu 1/26/12
7 Bid Review and Recommendations Fri1/2712 Mon 1/30/12 : D
8 Award Transformer Contract Tue 1/31/12 Tue 2/7/12 :]
9 Bid Other Owner furnished Material Thu 1/26/12 Mon 3/26/12 £ —
| 10 Develop Specificalions for 69kV Breaker Thu 1/26/12 Thu 2/2/12 |:
1 Develop Specifications for 69kV PTs Mon 1/30/12 Mon 2/6/12 E
12 Develop Specifications for 69KV Station Service Tx Tue 1/31/12 Tue 2/7/112 C]
13 Develop Specifications for Relay Control Panels Thu 2/2/12 Thu 2/9/12 l:]
14 Develop Specifications for 138KV Circuit Switcher Mon 2/6/12 Mon 2/13/12 D
Develop Specifications for 138kV CT/PT Metering Units Wed 2/8/12 Wed 2/15/12 D
Bid to pre-selected Bidders Fri2/10/12 Fri 3/16/12 :}
Bid Opening Fri 3/16/12 Fri 3/16/12 ’ 3/116
Bid Review and Recommendations Fri 3/16/12 Mon 3/19/12

Award Transformer Contract

EEEE EROEEEEDODOEEE DEEOEEEREEE DEEEE

20 Complete Final Design
21 Develop Foundation Layout
22 Develop Foundation Calculation
"23 Develop Grounding Plan & Details
24T Develop Conduit Plan & Details
25 Develop Control Building Plan & Details
|26 | Design Structural Steel
27 Develop Interconnection Wiring Diagrams
28 Interface with ITC Engineering
| 729 Develop Details Bill-of-Material for Substation
30 Review Final Design With TCLP Engineering Staff
31 Incorporate TCLP Comments into Final Design
32 Incorporate ITC Comments into Final Design
33 Bid Construction of TCLP Substation
34 Develop Bid Specification for Substation Construction
T35 Bid to pre-selected Bidders
36 Bid Opening
A Bid Review and Recommendations
T3 Award Substation Construction Contract
39
40 Substation Construction
[EE] Site Work
’ [EE] Foundation Installation
E Grounding Installation
eE] Fence Installation
45 I1[5H Conduit Installation
46 E Control Building Installation
47 1[5 Structural Steel Installation
T4 [5d Bus and Insulator Installation
49 = Delivery ion of 69KV B
50 et Delivery/installation of 138KV Circuit Switcher
51 E Delivery/Installation of 138kV Metering CT/PTs
52 E Delivery/Installation of 69kV PTs
53 E Delivery/Installation of 69kV Station Service TX
T 4 Delivery/Installation of Relay Control Panels
55 E Delivery/Installation of Control Cable
86 [ Relay Calibralion and Testing
Ts7 L SCADA Setup and Testing
58 5 Delivery of Power Transformer
|59 L Installation and Tesling of Power Transformer
60 Eg Function Testing and interface with ITC
G [ Energization of Power Transformer
62 | [ Final Check out and Energization of 69kV Bus
63 [ Final Check out and Energization of 69kV Line

Mon 3/19/12
Mon 3/12/12
Mon 3/12/12
Mon 3/19/12
Thu 3/22/12
Mon 3/26/12
Wed 3/28/12
Fri 4/6/112
Mon 4/2/12
Mon 3/19/12
Thu 3/22/12
Tue 3/27/112
Mon 4/9/12
Thu 4/12/12
Wed 2/29/12
Wed 2/29/12
Wed 4/18/12
Wed 5/23/12
Wed 5/23/12
Thu 5/24/12

Fri 6/1/12
Fri6/1/12
Fri6/15112
Mon 7/2/12
Tue 717112
Tue 7/24/12
Fri7/13/112
Mon 7/9/12
Mon 7/30/12
Tue 8/7112
Fri 8/17112
Mon 8/27/12
Mon 9/3/12
Mon 9/17/12
Tue 9/25/12
Mon 10/8/12
Fri 10/26/12
Thu 11/1/12
Tue 11/13/12
Mon 11/19/12
Mon 12/3/12
Tue 12/11/12
Thu 12/13/12
Fri12/14/12

Mon 3/26/12
Tue 4/17/12
Wed 3/21/12

Fri 3/23/12
Tue 3/27/12

Fri 3/30/12

Mon 4/2/12
Wed 4/11/12
Thu 4/12/12
Tue 4/10/12

Fri 3/30/12

Fri 3/30/12
Thu 4/12/12
Tue 4/17/12
Thu 6/31/12
Wed 4/18/12
Wed 5/23/12
Wed 5/23/12
Thu 5/24/12
Thu 5/31/12

Fri1214/12
Fri 6/29/12
Thu 7/5/12
Mon 7/9/12
Fri 7/20112
Fri 7/27/12
Wed 8/1/12

Thu 7/26/12
Fri 8/17/12
Thu 8/9/12

Thu 8/23/12
Fri 8/31/12

Fri9/7/12

Fri 9/21/12
Mon 10/1/12
Thu 10/18/12
Thu 11/1/12
Mon 11/12/12
Fri11/16/12
Thu 11/22/12
Fri1277/12
Tue 12/11/12
Thu 12/13/12
Fri12/14/12

‘ 1211
’ 12113
’ 12/14

Project: East Side sub Preliminary 11-1
Date: Thu 1/12/12

E==

split

R IR AR AAN]

Progress

I Milestone

ﬁ

& Summary Project Summary

External Tasks

s

External Milestone @

Deadline

‘J} -

Page 1

44



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
EAST SIDE 69kV TRANSMISSION LINE

ID |Task Name Duration Start Finish [ 2012
ovember 201] ecember 201|January 2012 ebruary 201 March 2012 | April 2012 | May 2012 [ June 2012 [ July 2012 [August 2012 leptember 20 [October 2012]ovember 201] ecember 201]January 2013ebruary 201

1 East Side Transmission Line 279 days Fri 12/16/11 Wed 1/9/13 , '

2 Topographic Survey Completion 1 day Fri 12/16/11 Fri 12/16/11 & 12116

3 Transmission & Distribution Design 128 days Wed 1/4/12 Fri 6/29/12

4 Plan & Profile Drawing Development 26 days Wed 1/4/12 Wed 2/8/12

5 Preliminary Owner Review 5 days Thu 2/9/12 Wed 2/15/12

6 Transmission Construction Drawings 15 days Thu 2/16/12 Wed 3/7/12

7 Owner Review & Quality Check 10 days Thu 3/8/12 Wed 3/21/12

8 CE Review Period 22 days Thu 3/22/12 Fri 4/20/12

9 MDOT Agreement 72 days Thu 3/22/12 Fri 6/29/12 |

10 Clearing 78 days Wed 2/1/12 Fri 5/18/12 —

1 Tree Clearing Field Review 2 days Wed 2/1/12 Thu 2/2/12

12 Clearing Drawings 5 days Fri 2/3/12 Thu 2/9/12 '
13 TCL&P and Land Owner Review 14 days Fri 2/10/12 Wed 2/29/12
14 Clearing Contract Preparation 5 days Mon 2/20/12 Fri 2/24/12
15 Clearing Contract Bid Period 12 days Mon 2/27/12 Tue 3/13/12
16 Clearing Contract Bid Opening 1 day Thu 3/15/12 Thu 3/15/12 /15
17 Clearing Contract Award 1 day Tue 3/27/12 Tue 3/27/12 ' 3/27
18 Tree & Brush Clearing 35 days Mon 4/2/12 Fri 5/18/12 I—:]
19 Owner Furnished Material Procurement 92 days Mon 4/9/12 Tue 8/14/12 : —
20 Material Contracts Bid Period 16 days Mon 4/9/12 Mon 4/30/12
21 Material Contract Bid Opening 1 day Tue 5/1/12 Tue 5/1/12 : /1
22 Material Contract Award 1 day Tue 5/8/12 Tue 5/8/12 /8
23 Material Delivery 70 days Wed 5/9/12 Tue 8/14/12
24 Wood Pole Packages Bid Period 16 days Mon 4/9/12 Mon 4/30/12 : _
25 Wood Pole Bid Opening 1 day Tue 5/1/12 Tue 5/1/12 ' /1
26 Wood Pole Contract Award 1 day Tue 5/8/12 Tue 5/8/12 /8
27 Wood Pole Delivery 70 days Wed 5/9/12 Tue 8/14/12 ‘
28 Construction Contract Bidding 25 days Wed 5/23/12 Tue 6/26/12 ~
29 Construction Contract Bid Period 16 days Wed 5/23/12 Wed 6/13/12
30 Bid Opening 1 day Thu 6/14/12 Thu 6/14/12 /14
31 Award Construction Contract 1 day Tue 6/26/12 Tue 6/26/12 : 6/26
32 Transmission Line Construction 100 days Mon 8/6/12 Fri 12/21/12 ‘
33 Access Dr Line Construction 20 days Mon 8/6/12 Fri 8/31/12 .
34 Wood Pole Installation 34 days Tue 9/4/12 Fri 10/19/12
35 Conductor Stringing 30 days Mon 10/22/12 Fri 11/30/12 :
36 Line Energization 1day Fri 12/14/12 Fri 12/14/12 ' 2/14
37 Punch List & Cleanup 5 days Mon 12/17/12 Fri 12/21/12
38 Project Closeout 17 days  Tue 12/18/12 Wed 1/9/13 “
39 Record Drawings & Closeout Documents 16 days Tue 12/18/12 Tue 1/8/13 ' ' |;I
40 Project Review Meeting 1 day Wed 1/9/13 Wed 1/9/13 ‘ ‘ 1/9

Task [ ] summay P  Rolled Up Progress Immmmmmmmm—  Split Cvv i oo oo . Deadine L
GRP Eniresring; Inc: Progress IS Rolled Up Task External Tasks Rolled Up Split ..o

Mon 1/16/12

Milestone ‘

Rolled Up Milestone >

Project Summary External Milestone

East Side Transmission Line - 1

45



Traverse City Light & Power Department Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

East Bay Charter Township Planning Commission

Special Land Use: SLU 6-11, SPR 7-11 for
Traverse City Light & Power Department
Date: December 6, 2011

FINDINGS OF FACT

Background. The City of Traverse City Light & Power Department is a municipally-owned utility
that provides domestic electrical service to a significant portion of the region. ITC Holdings LLC,
owns and operates a large electrical transmission network, including the existing 138kV line
adjacent to the site. The proposed substation will be located on its own parcel with an adjoining
non-exclusive access easement 66-feet in width to provide a connection to Four Mile Road. The
substation site will be located about 1,200 feet east of Four Mile Road in an area of rolling hills
and dense stands of spruce trees. The facility will be well screened from view from surrounding
parcels and roads by existing vegetation, proposed plantings and the rolling nature of the terrain.
The two adjoining substations will occupy a fenced area consuming about one-half of the 6.5 acre
site, with the remainder consisting of new or existing vegetation, setbacks and drive areas. Because
of the extent of elevation change across the site, a fairly deep cut will be undertaken along the
southern boundary. This will be stabilized with a retaining wall to minimize grading. The
transmission line routing along Four Mile Road will consist of a poleforpole replacement
whenever possible, although somewhat taller poles will be necessary to provide required clearances
for cables and conductors. The property is a conforming lot in the Agricultural (AG) district and
the proposed replacement substation will occupy about 6.59 acres. The proposed facility is
considered a Major Essential Service Facilities and it is treated as a special land use in the AG
district.

The Planning Commission thoroughly considered the proposal in public hearing on December 6,
2011 following proper public notice and ultimately took the following action: Conditional
approval of the special land use and site plan, subject to the findings and conditions presented
below.

The following Exhibits support these findings of fact and the decision the decisions of the
Planning Commission:

¢ Special Land Use Application and attached additional information, including Exhibits A
through E, dated 10/7/2011;

¢ GRP Engineering Site Plan Set, including Sheets, T, TC-EL, ITCEL, R-1, R-2 and D-1, and
Gosling-Czubak sheets C-1, C2, C3, C4 and L-1; all dated 11/2/2001;

FINDINGS

The approval process for a Special Land Use requires attention to the specific provisions applicable
to such facilities at Section 628, the general standards applicable to all special land uses and the

46




Traverse City Lisht & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

specific site plan approval standards. The following section addresses each of these provisions and
the findings of the Planning Commission:

1. Section 628, Major Essential Service Facilities.

a.

“Any above ground major essential service facility shall be fully secured from unauthorized
entry either by construction of the facility itself or through fencing which meets the
requirements of this ordinance.”

The entire site will be fenced and the site plan indicates the fence will be eight feet high
chainlink fence topped with three strands of barbed wire. Subject to the conditions of
approval calling for relocation of the fence to include the retaining wall or to top the wall,
the Planning Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“As a condition of approval of a special land use permit, the Planning Commission may
require remote monitoring of major essential service facilities that may be vulnerable to
damage or disruption.”

“Major essential service facilities located out-of-doors shall be screened from view from
adjoining properties and from public road rights-of-way with evergreen plantings planted at
such intervals as to provide an opaque screen within oneyear of planting. Equipment
buildings intended to house major essential service facilities, such as well houses, pump
buildings or equipment shelters, shall be constructed of face brick, decorative masonry,
cement board or wood lap siding designed to resemble nearby structures. Provided, that a
side of such equipment building that is not visible from a public rightofway, may be
constructed of common cement block or metal panels, if further screened with evergreen
landscaping.”

The two control building are proposed to have a metal panel exterior, but given the
isolated distance of the site from surrounding roads and the rolling and wooded nature of
the site, the Planning Commission finds that the buildings will not be readily visible from a
public roadway and therefore this will meet the ordinance requirement.

“All above ground major essential service facilities shall be located in conformance with the
yard, lot width and lot area standards of this ordinance. With the exception of elevated
water storage facilities and electrical transmission towers and poles, major essential service
facilities shall not exceed the maximum height requirements of the zoning district in which
they are located.”

The Planning Commission finds that because the proposed facility will consist of electrical
transmissions towers and poles the special land use is not impacted by the height
limitations of the underlying zoning district.

“A major essential service facility shall be considered an accessory use to any other
permitted or special land use, if it occupies no more than ten (10) percent of the parcel
which is shared with the principal use. A major essential service facility located on an
otherwise vacant parcel shall be considered the principal use of that parcel.”

L2

47




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

As the only use on this parcel, the substations would be considered the principal use of the
property. The Planning Commission finds that the requirements of the ordinance are met
with respect to this condition.

“An above ground major essential service facility which is fenced or which is housed in an
equipment building shall include a sign placard of not more than two square feet which
shall indicate the owner or operator’s name, address and emergency contact information.
In addition, such facilities may include any required hazard warning signage.”

The Planning Commission finds that while the site plan provides proposed signage which
shall be appropriately located and sized to meet ordinance requirements pursuant to the
conditions of approval and the Planning Commission finds that this will meet the
ordinance requirement.

2. Section 602, 1, Special Land Use Approval Standards.

a.

“Be consistent with the adopted Township Comprehensive Plan.”

The Planning Commission finds that this standard is met as the Comprehensive Plan
designates the site as Residential - Medium to High Density even though its current zoning
is Agricultural. Ultimately the Township expects agricultural use of the site to give way to
residential development and such growth will require adequate and reliable electrical
energy which the substation can help to supply. In addition, because existing and
replanted vegetation and the rolling terrain will provide effective screening, the scale of the
facility can be mitigated even as future residential land uses begin to emerge.

“Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained to be consistent with the existing or
intended character of the general vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential
character of the area in which it is proposed.”

The Planning Commission finds that the new substation will be a departure from the
current character of the property itself. However, the vegetation and rolling terrain will
screen it from view and help to mitigate any impact on the character of the area
surrounding the site. In addition, while the facility will include some poles or towers that
exceed the height standard of the AG district, the impact on neighboring properties is
effectively mitigated both by intervening tree cover and the terrain of the site.
Furthermore, the existing power line that crosses the site has included taller transmission
towers for many years, so the introduction of additional transmission poles is not felt to be
a significant departure from current conditions. The Planning Commission finds that this
standard is met.

“Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity and
in the community as a whole.”

The potential hazards of a high-voltage substation are well understood and the proposed
design includes fencing and signage to help protect the facility from unauthorized entry.
The tall retaining wall which is necessary to minimize grading and the loss of natural

23~

483




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special ILand Use, Findings of Fact

L.

features, does create a potential hazard which needs to be addressed as outlined herein.
Subject to the conditions of approval, the Planning Commission finds that this standard is
met.

“Be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, such as highways, streets,
police and fire protection, stormwater drainage, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities
and schools or persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use
shall be able to provide adequately for such services.”

As an unoccupied facility, the substation will not place additional demands on municipal
services. Stormwater impacts will be addressed through the permeable surface throughout
much of the site and the two small detention basins along the access drive. The Planning
Commission finds that this standard is met, subject to the approval of the Road
Commission, MDOT, Metro Fire Department and Drain Commissioner.

“Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for facilities and services and
will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.”

The proposed facility does not include any features that increase public costs for facilities
or services. The Planning Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or conditions of operation
that will be detrimental to any person, property or general welfare by reason of excessive
production of traffic, noise, vibration, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.”

While the facility may generate some transformer noise, it will be mitigated both by the
isolation of the site and the surrounding land forms. The nearest residence is located
about 300 feet from the facility with a significant intervening stand of spruce trees and
about 14 feet of elevation difference to muffle and deflect audible noise. The Planning
Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“Ensure that the environment shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practicable,
by minimizing tree and soil removal, and by topographic modifications that result in
maximum harmony with adjacent areas.”

The Planning Commission finds that while the footprint of the site will be changed, the
proposal to transplant many of the trees on the site and the effort to minimize grade
changes through the use of the retaining wall, helps to preserve much of the natural
features, insofar as practical. Beyond the site, the impact of this facility will be effectively
mitigated by the existing and transplanted trees and by the rolling terrain. The Planning
Commission finds that this standard is met.

Meet the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance; be related to the standards
established in the Ordinance for the land use or activity under consideration; and will be in
compliance with these standards.

49




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

The Zoning Ordinance provides standards for Major Essential Service Facilities, and as
outlined here and subject to the conditions of approval, the proposed design appropriately
addresses those requirements. Within the AG district, the Township seeks to encourage
commercial agriculture. The passive nature of the substation is compatible with
agricultural activities and it will help to assure sufficient electrical energy within the growth
boundary over the long term, even as commercial agricultural continues at present. The
Planning Commission finds that this standard is met.

3. Section 820, 7, Site Plan Approval Standards. Section 820, 7, provides criteria for the review
of site plans and the following paragraphs highlight issues regarding the site plan the Planning
Commission has considered

a.

Ownership and easements. The applicant for special land use approval is the City of
Traverse City Light & Power Department which has an option to acquire the site of the
substations from the land owner. In addition, the Light & Power Department will grant an
easement to ITC Holdings, LLC, over a portion of the site for their switchyard. Finally,
Light & Power will utilize Consumers Energy poles to transmit power to its substation on
Parsons Road. In granting special land use approval pursuant to this application, the
applicant assures that the terms of approval are binding on all the various parties, and such
assurance is subject to review and confirmation by the Township Attorney.

Retaining wall. The nearly 20foot tall retaining wall to be located immediately south of
the substation presents a potential hazard to someone on foot or in an ATV and it provides
an elevated perspective into the substation which could be a security risk. As outlined in
the conditions of approval, the safety and security of this feature shall be addressed.

Exterior lighting for the facility includes both convenience lights at the entrances to the
control buildings and 30-foot tall yard lighting to be used during non-daylight emergency or
maintenance activities. The site plan does not include any detail for these light fixtures,
but Section 210 requires night sky compliant design with 100% cut-off shielding and no
fixture mounted higher than 20 feet above the average grade of the site. According to the
attachment to the special land use application, these lights will normally not be in use, but
will be needed for emergency repairs, when they will be turned on manually. The elevation
of the property varies by about 40 feet making allowing some flexibility in the maximum
height of the light fixtures.

Signage. Detail on the proposed signs is provided on the site plan, but the proposed
location is not. Section 215, 9 would permit a single, four square foot free-standing sign at
the entrance drive. Such a sign could include information on both the Light & Power
facility and the ITC facility. In addition, smaller two square foot hazard warning signs may
be affixed to the fence and would be regarded as exempt per Section 215, 4, j.

Remote monitoring. The site is fairly isolated location of the facility and it will be manned
infrequently. The application mentions remote monitoring but does not provide further
detail. In verbal commentary before the Planning Commission, the applicant indicated

.5~

50




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

that remote monitoring will include systems to monitor the functionality of the equipment
as well as a security alarm on the access gates.

Transmission lines along Four Mile and the MDOT Rail Rightof-Way. The existing
Consumers Energy power poles along Four Mile Road are proposed to be replaced “pole-
for-pole” to accommodate the new transmission lines. In addition, the Light & Power
Department lines will be upgraded along the MDOT rail rightofway which includes the
TART trail. The applicant and Planning Commission have discussed the process to
remove and replace these structures and measures that will be taken to minimize
disruption of traffic on the road and trail usage.

Landscaping Irrigation Waiver. Healthy and generous landscaping will be important to
softening the visual impact of this facility. The proposal to relocate existing trees on the
site will be helpful to providing an effective buffer at the outset, if the relocated trees
survive the transplanting operation. Section 229, 3, f, requires a two-year landscape
replacement surety and this can be supplemented by a perpetual replacement requirement
as a condition of approval.

4. DECISION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. Based on the foregoing review and
findings of fact, the proposed special land use and site plan is hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions:

a.

No preliminary or final earthwork, grading or timber removal shall be undertaken on the
site until a land use permit has been issued; provided that limited timber removal may be
undertaken solely for the purposes of completing soil borings.

The ownership and easement documents associated with the proposal shall be made
available to the Township Attorney to assure that there are no provisions in any of the
documents that might conflict with a conditional approval by the Planning Commission.

The site plan shall be revised to realign the security fencing to include the retaining wall

within the fenced area.

The applicant shall submit documentation satisfactory to the Zoning Administrator that all
exterior lighting shall comply with the requirements of Section 210; provided that
emergency work lighting to provide for the safety of workers on site may be excepted from
this requirement so long as it is illuminated only for such emergency repairs.

The signage on the facility shall include one free-standing sign at the entrance road in
accordance with Section 215, 9 as well as appropriate warning information and emergency
contact information as required by the ordinance and subject to final approval by the
Zoning Administrator.

The required irrigation of transplanted plantings shall be waived but approval shall be
conditioned on a requirement that the applicant shall post with the Township the required
surety for landscape viability and further shall replace any plantings that fail to become
established for a long as the facility is in existence.



Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

g Approval of the special land use and site plan shall be conditioned on the final comments
(if any) of the Road Commission, MDOT, Metro Fire Department and Drain
Commissioner.

52




QOctober 27, 2010

Digaunto Chatlerjee

Midwest 1ISO

Manager Expansion Planning
P.0. Box 4202

Carmel, Indiana 46082-4202

Re: Traverse Cily Light and Power
East Side Substation Project (P3703 and P3704)

Dear Mr. Chatlerjee:

Per your request, | am writing to amplify the comments | presented at the System
Planning Committee of the Board of Directors of MISO meeting of October 20, 2010.

As you are aware, Wolverine Power Supply Cooperative objects to the inclusion of
Traverse City Light and Power’s (TCLP) East Side Substation Project in Appendix A of
the Michigan Transmission Expansion Plan for 2010. Wolverine argues that the East
Side project should be rejected in favor of the formerly proposed Gray Road to Hall
Street west side transmission line rebuild, because the west side project is the least-
cost solution. The west side project was included in Appendix A of the MTEP 9 plan but
was removed by TCLP in 2009 after the proceedings outlined in the detailed timeline

TCLP has previously submitted to you.

Proposing that the west side project is the least-cost solution presupposes that the west
side project is feasible. Wolverine and TCLP disagree on this point.

Wolverine argues that the west side project is feasible because “TCLP is legally entitled
to proceed without any further municipal or residential approvals;” and that the only
reason TCLP removed the west side project from the MTEP 9 list was that it was
“unpopular with a small but vocal group of local residents.” Wolverine argues that “the
MISO process should not be manipulated to avoid modest local resistance.”

TCLP responds that the board of a municipal utility is obliged to balance the
requirements of the utility with the needs of the community, and that the planning criteria
TCLP previously submitted to MISO reflect this obligation — calling for project planners
to be “cognizant of economic, social, environmental, visual, and political implications

associated with planned projects.”

As the Mayor of Traverse City, | wish to offer the following additional perspective.

53




Digaunto Chatterjee
MisSO

October 27, 2010
Page 2 of 3

First, | reiterate that while 84% of TCLP’s customer base by revenue is commercial,
industrial and non-city-resident residential customers, the utility is owned by the
residents of Traverse City and it is a core obligation of the TCLP board to take the
wishes of the residents into account in project planning. Recognition of this obligation is
specifically embedded within TCLP’s planning principles previously submitted to MISO.
TCLP has provided a timeline of its efforts to win public acceptance of the west side
project. Itis evident from that timeline that TCLP exhausted all reasonable avenues to
gain such acceptance, without success.

Second, and contrary to Wolverine’s representations, TCLP is not eniitled to proceed
without any further municipal or residential approvals. TCLP requires at least iwo
additional municipal approvals to proceed, and | do not anticipate TCLP would receive
either of them. The question of whether a project is approvable would seem to me to be
central to whether it is feasible.

The first approval requirement arises from Section 61 of the Michigan Planning Enabling
Act. This provision requires approval by the City Planning Commission of the “location,
character, and extent” of many types of public improvements — including utility
construction - within the city limits. | do not anticipate that the Planning Commission

would approve the location of the west side project.

As detailed in the timeline TCLP provided, the west side project included work within a
widely used public park owned and operated by the Traverse City-Garfield Township
Joint Recreation Authority. The Recreation Authority went on record in opposition to the
project. Additionally, as | mentioned at the meeting, a stretch of the project would have
to be run through an old and congested residential neighborhood.

In addition to Planning Commission approval under the planning statute, the west side
project also requires approval by the City Commission under Section 179(o) of the City
Charter, which governs approval of the TCLP capital plan and amendments to the
capital plan. For largely the same reasons given in the previous paragraph, | do not
anticipate that the City Commission would approve an amendment {o the capital plan

authorizing the project.

On behalf of the City of Traverse City and on behalf of Traverse City Light and Power, |
sincerely thank the MISO Board of Directors and Staff for the time and attention devoted

to this matter. It is a vitally important project for us.

Very truly yours,

Christopher M. Bzdok
Mayor

54




Digaunto Chatterjee

MISO

Qctober 27, 2010
Page 3 of 3

XC:

Ed Rice, Executive Director, TCLP

Glen Dine, Chief Engineer, TCLP

Mike Coco, Chair, TCLP

Peter Schimpke, MPPA

City Manager

City Commission

Fred Wilmeth, Chair City Planning Commission

Ross Biederman, Chair Joint Recreation Authority

Mike Gaines, President Slabtown Neighborhood Association




Traverse City Light & Power

TRANSMISSION PLANNING CRITERIA

The purpose of this document is to establish acceptable transmission planning criteria for
Traverse City Light & Power (“TCL&P”). TCL&P utilizes NERC reliability criteria as
guidelines in planning its transmission system as well as TCL&P and/or consultant
criteria as applicable. Changes to transmission facilities are considered when the criteria
are exceeded and cannot feasibly be alleviated by operating practices.

TCL&P’s transmission system is planned to provide service during periods of system
peak load and under single contingency (N-1) outages as defined by NERC and adopted
by Reliability First (RFC). TCL&P reserves the right to utilize more conservative
planning criteria where appropriate. TCL&P planners should be cognizant of economic,
social, environmental, visual, and political implications associated with planned projects.
TCL&P planners must use good judgment and experience when developing projects that
lead to an economic and reliable power system that provides access to generation.

For normal conditions with all transmission circuits in service, the following conditions
should be met. TCL&P reserves the right to utilize more conservative planning criteria
where appropriate:

1. Bus voltages should range from 95.0-to-105.0 percent of nominal.

2. No individual ine conductors, connectors or facility components should
be loaded above their normal thermal rating for times in excess of design
limits.

3. Transformers should not be loaded above their maximum rating using a
temperature rise of 65 degree C.

4. Loss of demand, curtailed firm transfers or cascading outages should not
occur.

For the loss of a single element (N-1), unplanned outage of a single circuit, circuit
breaker, or transformer, the following conditions should be met. TCL&P reserves the

right to utilize more conservative planning criteria where appropriate:

1. Bus voltages should range from 92.0-to-106.0 percent of nominal.
No individual Ine conductors, connectors or facility components should
be loaded above their emergency rating for times in excess of design

limits.

3. Transformers should not be loaded above their maximum rating at a
temperature rise of 65 deg C or as determined by the IEEE loading
guidelines.

50




4. Planned or controlled interruption of electric supply to customers supplied
by or connected to the faulted element or by the affected area may occur.
This should not impact the overall reliability of the interconnected
transmission system.

5. Cascading outages should not occur.

Events(s) resulting in the loss of two or more elements, unplanned outage of a bus
section, breaker failure, or delayed clearing, the following conditions should be met .
TCL&P reserves the right to utilize more conservative planning criteria where
appropriate:

1. Bus voltages should range from 90.0-to-106.0 percent of nominal.

2. No individual ine conductors, connectors or facility components should
be loaded above their emergency mting for times in excess of design
limits.

3. Transformers should not be loaded above their maximum rating at a
temperature rise of 65 deg C or as determined by the IEEE loading
guidelines.

4. Planned or controlled interruption of electric supply to customers, removal

of generators, and/or the curtailment of firm (non-recallable reserved)
electric power transfers may occur in order to maintain the overall
reliability of the interconnected transmission system. A substantial loss of
customer demand and generation may occur in a widespread area.

5. Cascading outages should not occur.




Ed Rice

From: Peter Schimpke [PSchimpke@mpower.org]
Sent: Thursday, December 02, 2010 10:11 AM
To: Ed Rice; Glen Dine

Cc: David Walters; Matt Dykstra

Subject: RE: Traverse City East Projects

Ed/Glen:

MTEP10 approved without incident. Time to put on your work boots and hard hat.

From: Ed Rice [ERice@tclp.org]

Sent: Wednesday, December 01, 2010 10:05 AM
To: Peter Schimpke; Glen Dine

Cc: David Walters; Matt Dykstra

Subject: RE: Traverse City East Projects

Pete,

Thanks for the excellent follow up and your representation for TCL&P on important issue for us.

Ed

Edward E. Rice, P.E.
Executive Director

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, Michigan 49686
231-932-4559

From: Peter Schimpke [mailto:PSchimpke@mpower.org]
Sent: Wednesday, December 01, 2010 8:52 AM

To: Ed Rice; Glen Dine

Cc: David Walters; Matt Dykstra

Subject: Traverse City East Projects

All:

Yesterday MISO had their latest System Planning Committee for the Board Meeting and | attended to
protect our interests. Wolverine and Consumers each had two representatives at this meeting.
Although the Traverse City projects were discussed for about 10 minutes there was no opposition
voiced. This is in contrast to the November 18th meeting when Wolverine voiced objections on 4
different fronts and was borderline disrespectful toward MISO. One of their objections was blatantly
incorrect so | stepped up and spoke correcting this error. | also complimented MISO for being thorough
in their assessment of the entire situation surrounding the Traverse City projects.

The System Planning Committee approved Appendix A including the Traverse City projects so things are
going well. | will be attending the Advisory Committee meeting today to ensure nothing goes wrong at

this point. Thursday is the Board of Directors when Appendix A receives its final blessing.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have questions.

3/6/2012

53



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

St 1975

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board % {{) 2

From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 7, 2012
Subject: Property Purchase — East Side Substation

The Traverse City Light and Power Department entered into an Option Agreement with
Patricia C. Groleau on September 27, 2010 for the exclusive right and option to purchase
real property for $500,000, per the terms of the Option Agreement. Having received
conditional approval of the Site Plan for construction of the East Side Substation on the
parcel to be purchased, staff is ready to proceed with the purchase of the property in
preparation of site work that will begin later in the spring. TCL&P must provide written
notice to exercise the option to the landowner prior to the option period ending on March
27, 2012.

Information related to the property is included in your packet. The property owner has
completed an approved land division with the Township for the parcel being purchased.
Staff will be prepared to answer any questions.

Staff is recommending that the Department exercise the option to purchase real property
from Patricia C. Groleau. [f the Board concurs, the following motion is appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;
THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE THE DEPARTMENT TO
EXERCISE THE OPTION TO PURCHASE GIVEN SEPTEMBER 27, 2010 BY
PATRICIA C. GROLEAU TO THE TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
DEPARTMENT, AND TO DIRECT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO GIVE NOTICE
OF THE EXERCISE TO PATRICIA C. GROLEAU AND PROCEED WITH THE
PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY ACCORDING TO THE TERMS OF THE OPTION
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES DATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2010.

59




Option Agreement

Option given the 27 day of SQE&Q\@, Yar, 2010, by Patricia C. Groleaw, a widowed woman,
“Optionor,” whose address is 4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, MI 49686, to the
Traverse City Light and Power Department, a Michigan municipal electric utility,
“Optionee,” whose address is 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, MI 49686.

Section 1. Grant of Option

In consideration of the option money payment of $25,000, paid by Optionee to Optionor, receipt
of which Optionor acknowledges, Optionor grants to Optionee the exclusive right and option to
purchase, on the following terms and conditions, that real property located in Section 28, East
Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, State of Michigan, and more specifically described on
the attached Attachment A, the “Property.”

Section 2. Option Period

The primary term of this Option will be commencing on the above date and continuing for 18
months which is until Meyreh 277, 2042 on 12:00 midnight.

On failure of Optionee to exercise the Option to purchase the Property at the end of the last term,
all consideration paid for this Option will be the sole property of Optionor, and there will be no
further liability of the parties under this Agreement, one to the other.

In the event the Optionee exercises this Option to purchase the Property, the option money
payments to Optionor will be applied to the purchase price.

Section 3. Purchase Price of Property

The full purchase price of the Property is $500,000 which will be payable as provided in this
Option Agreement if Optionee elects to exercise this Option.

Section 4. Exercise of Option

Optionee may exercise this Option by giving Optionor written notice of the exercise, signed by
the Optionee, before the time set forth in this Option Agreement for expiration. If exercised, this
Option Agreement shall be the purchase agreement. Within 14 days after receipt of the notice,
Optionor will deliver to escrow agent, against payment of the purchase price, a full warranty
deed to the Property and Easement in the form of Attachment C. Optionee within 14 days after
giving notice shall deliver the full purchase price to escrow agent. Such deed shall convey one
division right under the Land Division Act.

Section 5. Closing in Escrow

If this Option is exercised, the sales transaction will be consummated through the services of
Corporate Title, 414 E. Front, Traverse City, Michigan, as escrow agent. Escrow will be opened

60




within seven (7) days following exercise of the Option in the manner here provided. Optionor
and Optionee will execute escrow instructions consistent with the terms set forth here. Title
insurance company escrow and closing fees will be paid equally by the parties. Escrow will
close within 30 days from the date of exercise of the Option.

Section 6. Proof of Title

Within 21 days from the date of this Agreement, Optionor shall furnish Optionee with a title
insurance policy commitment, written by a title insurer acceptable to Optionee. If objection to
the title of the property is made within 21 days from the date of providing such title commitment,
Optionor shall have 28 days from the date that it is notified in writing of the particular defects
claimed to either (i) use its good faith efforts to remedy the title objection, (ii) obtain title
insurance over the title defect, or (iii) terminate this Option Agreement if Optionor is unable to
remedy the title defect or obtain title insurance over the title defect. If Optionor is unable to
remedy Optionee’s title objection or obtain such title insurance over such title defect within said
28 day period, this Option Agreement shall terminate and all option moneys shall be refunded,
unless Optionee elects to waive its title objection by notice to Optionor within 7 days after
expiration of such 28 day period. If this Option exercised, the title insurance commitment shall

be updated to the date of closing. '

Title to Property will be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances, except easements and
restrictions of record on the date of this Agreement. Optionor shall not further encumber the
Property from the date hereof until Closing or the termination of this Option Agreement.
Optionor shall notify Optionee of any involuntary liens or encumbrances on the Property from
the date hereof until Closing or termination of this Option Agreement.

Section 7. Apportionment of Taxes and Assessments

The real property taxes on the Property, whether a lien or not, assessed or to be assessed for the
year in which this transaction is finally consummated based on proportionate acreage to the
larger tax parcel owned by Optionor, will be prorated between the parties to the date of delivery
of the deed of conveyance. Ifthe taxes are not determinable at the time of delivery, the amount
of the prior year’s taxes will then be used as a basis of proration. All special assessments, benefit
changes and similar changes which are or may become a lien against the Property, if any, will be

paid by the Optionor.

Section 8. Failure to Exercise the Option

If Optionee does not exercise this Option in accordance with its terms and within the Option
period, this Option and the rights of Optionee will automatically and immediately terminate
without notice. In the event Optionee fails to exercise this Option, Optionor will retain all sums
paid as consideration for this Option and be under no obligation to complete the Purchase and
Sale contemplated under this Option Agreement.

61




Section 9. Recording

Either party may record this Option, or any memorandum of this Option, with the Register of
Deeds or other public official.

Section 10. License

Optionor shall grant to Optionee a License to Enter Real Property, and the Optionee shall accept
such license in the form attached hereto as Attachment B and entitled “License to Enter Real
Property Subject to Conditions.”

Section 11. Manner of Giving Notice

All notices, requests, demands, and other communications required or permitted to be given
under this Option shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given if delivered
personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, as follows:

If to Optionor:

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Albert Courtade Road
Traverse City, MI 49686

If to Optionee:

Executive Director

Traverse City Light and Power Department
1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, MI 49686

Section 12, Time of the Essence

Time is of the essence in this Option. Within 90 days of the date of the Option Agreement,
Optionee shall have under contract an engineering firm to begin design work. Optionee shall
also have begun on-site survey work, and will provide evidence of contact with the Township
and continuous pursuit concerning all necessary permits including but not limited to land
division, land use and zoning,.

Section 13. Binding Effect

This Option will bind and inure to the benefit of the parties to it, and their respective heirs,
successors, or assigns.

62




Section 14. Representations and Warranties

Optionor represents and warrants to Optionee (which representations and warranties shall remain
true as of the date of closing) and covenants that Optionor has the full right and power to enter
into this Agreement and to consummate or cause to be consummated the transaction

contemplated by this Agreement,

Section 15, Indemnification

Optionee shall indemnify and hold the Optionor, her heirs, successors and assigns, harmless from
any liabilities, including environmental cost or expense, which may occur as a result of Optionee’s
operations on the optioned parcel and easement.

Section 16. Additional Documents

Each party agrees to execute any additional documents reasonably requested by the other to carry
out the intent of this Agreement, including but not limited to zoning, land use and land division

applications.

Section 17, Eminent Domain

If before closing, all or any part of the Property is taken by eminent domain, Optionee may
terminate this Agreement. If Optionee terminates this Agreement, neither Optionor nor Optionee
shall have any further obligation to the other and the option consideration will promptly be
returned to Optionee. If Optionee does not terminate this Agreement, at closing, Optionor will
assign to Optionee all of Optionor’s right to receive any awards that may be made for such

taking.
Section 18. Optionor’s Default

In the event of Optionor’s default under this Agreement, Optionee may, at its option, elect to
either (i) specifically enforce the terms of this Agreement, or (ii) demand and be entitled to an
immediate refund of the option consideration, in full termination of this Agreement. Optionee
acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing shall be Optionee’s sole remedies in the event of
Optionor’s default and Optionee shall not have any right to seek damages against Optionor under

this Agreement.

Section 19. Transaction Expenses and Closing Costs

€)] Optionee shall pay the fees of any counsel representing Optionee in connection with this
transaction. Optionee shall also pay the following costs and expenses:

(i)  the cost of one half of the title insurance company escrow and closing fee;

63




(i)  Optionee shall pay for survey costs and prepare surveyed legal description for the
“Property”; :

(iif)  Optionee shall record and pay the recording fees for the deed and easement,

(b)  Optionor shall pay the fees of any counsel representing Optionor in connection with this
transaction. Optionor shall also pay the following costs and expenses:

@ any transfer tax, sales, tax, documentary stamp tax or similar tax which becomes
payable by reason of the transfer of the Property;

(i)  the Title Commitment and the premium for the standard ALTA title policy, but
Optionee at its additional expense may upgrade the type of title policy issued; and

(iif)  one half of the title insurance company escrow and closing fee.

©) Ad valorem real estate taxes shall be prorated at closing in accordance with local custom
and this Option Agreement.

(d)  All costs and expenses incident to this transaction, and not specifically described above,
shall be paid by the party incurring same.

(e The provisions of this Section shall survive the closing.
Section 20, Brokerage Commissions

Each party represents that it has not engaged a broker in connection with the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement. Each party hereto agrees that if any person or entity makes a
claim for brokerage commissions or finder’s fees related to the sale of the Property by Optionor
to Optionee, and such claim is made by, through or on account of any acts or alleged acts of said
party of its representatives, said party will protect, indemnify, defend and hold the other party
free and harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, cost, damage and expense
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) in connection therewith. The provisions of this Section
shall survive the closing or any termination of this Agreement,

Section 21. Interpretation

The pronouns and relative words herein used are written in the masculine and singular only, If
more than one party joins in the execution hereof as Optionor or Optionee, or either be of the
feminine sex or a corporation, such words shall be read as if written in plural, feminine or neuter,
respectively. Each party has participated fully in the negotiation and preparation of this
Agreement with full benefit or availability of counsel. Accordingly, this Agreement shall not be
more strictly construed against either party.

64




Section 22. Headings

The headings of this Agreement are for purposes of reference only and shall not limit or define
the meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 23, Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays

Whenever in this Agreement it is provided that notice must be given or an act performed or
payment made on a certain date, and if such date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, the date
of the notice of performance or payment shall be the next following business day.

Section 24. Waiver

No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a
waiver of any other provisions, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver be a continuing
waiver. No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

Section 25. Successors or Assigns

This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors, heirs and assigns. No assignment by Optionee of its rights under this Agreement
shall be binding upon Optionor until Optionee shall deliver to Optionor a copy of such
assignment,

Section 26. Cooperation

The parties hereto agree to cooperate with each other in every reasonable way in carrying out the
transaction contemplated hereby, in obtaining and delivering all required closing documents and
obtaining the required governmental approvals, and agree to use their best efforts to
expeditiously accomplish same.

Section 27. Modifications

This Agreement cannot be changed orally, and no executory agreement shall be effective to
waive, change, modify or discharge it, in whole or in part, unless such executory agreement is in
writing and is signed by the parties against whom enforcement of any waiver, change,
modification or discharge is sought.

Section 28. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including the attached exhibits and schedules, if any, contains the entire
agreement between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and fully supersedes
all prior written or oral agreements the understandings between the parties pertaining to such
subject matter.

65




Section 29. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all such executed counterparts shall constitute
the same agreement, and the signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a
signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.

Section 30. Facsimile Signatures

In order to expedite the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, telecopied signatures may
be used in place of original signatures on this Agreement. Optionor and Optionee intend to be
bound by the signatures on the telecopied document, are aware that the other party will rely on
the telecopied signatures, and hereby waive any defenses to the enforcement of the terms of this

Agreement based on the form of signature.

Section 31. Applicable Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

Section 32. No Third-Party Beneficiaries and No Joint Venture

The provisions of this Agreement and of the documents to be executed and delivered at closing
are and will be for the benefit of Optionor and Optionee only and are not for the benefit of any
third party, and accordingly, no third party shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this
Agreement or of the documents to be executed and delivered at closing. The parties do not
intend to create a joint venture or partnership by this Agreement.

Section 33. Attorneys’ Fees

In the event of any litigation between the parties concerning the subject of this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees. For this purpose, reasonable
attorneys’ fees shall be deemed to include court costs, including those for appellate proceedings,
and fees for paralegals, legal assistants, accountants, and similar persons.

The Optionor and Optionee have executed this Option on the day and year first written above.

OPTIONOR OPTIONEE Q\/
P d/EM = /&L—aje, e M/L&( -
Patricia C. Groleau By: Edward E. Rice

Its: Executive Director

Traverse City Light and Power
Depattment

66




STATE OF MICHIGAN )
' )SS
COUNTY OF érgn/ %MJ‘@ )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_ 2/  day of I@T

2010, by Patricia C. Groleau.
é % 2[ { Zg&: ,Notary Public
e of Michigan, County of f/y»/ Wm,arf e

My Commission Bxpires: _Jul, 248 20/
Acting in the County of &7/} o/ Traverse

Attachments:
ATTACHMENT A THE PROPERTY - Legal Description of Property
ATTACHMENT B - License to Enter Real Property Subject to Conditions

ATTACHMENT C - Easement

Drafted By:

W. Peter Doren

Sondee, Racine & Doren, PLC
310 W. Front Street, Suite 300
Traverse City, MI 49684

6/




ATTACHMENT A
THE PROPERTY

Attached to and made a part of the Option Agreement between Patricia C. Groleau, as
“Optionor,” and the Traverse City Light and Power Department, a Michigan municipal electric

utility, as “Optionee.”

The Property subject to this Option Agreement is located in the Township of East Bay, County
of Grand Traverse, State of Michigan, and is a part of a Parent Parcel described as follows:

The North one-half of the Northwest one-quarter of Sectlon 28, Town 27 North, Range 10 West

EXCEPT, that part of the North one-half of the Northwest one-quarter lylng with In the following parcel described as lylng
Southerly of a Counly Road, more fully described as: Commencing at the North quarter corner of sald Section 28; thence
North 89714’ West, 442.00 feet along the North lins of said Section 28 to the center line of county road and the Polint of
Beginning; thence Southeasterly, 215.79 feet along sald center line and the arc of a 451.52 foot radius curve to the right, the
chord of which bears South 75°32'30" East, 213.75 faet; thence South 611" East, 217.01 feet; along the center line; thence
Southeasterly, 217.06 fest along sald center line and the arc of a 544.86 foot radils curve to the left, the chord of which bears
South 73°15'50" East, 215.65 feet; thence South 84°40'40" East, 816.12 fest along said denterline; thonce South 84°34'55"
East, 211.87 feetf along sald conter line to the East one-elghth lins of sald sectlon ; thence South 0°25' East, 1032.67 feet
along sald East one-eighth line to the North one-eighth line of sald Section 28; thence North 89°14'25" West, 1268.10 fest
along sald North one-gighth line to the North and South quartér line of sald Section 28; thence Nérth 89°17'50" West, 650.94
feet along sald North one-glghth line to the west ling of gald East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter; thence
North 0°0025" West, 1333.23 feet along sald West line to said North Section line and center line; thence South 89°14" East,

208.80 feet, along sald North Sectlon line to the Point of Baginning.

Also, EXCEPT, that part of the Northwest one-quarier of the Northwest one-quarter of Sectlon 28, Town 27 North, Range 10
West, more fully described as:~ Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 28; thence South 00°52'45" East, 816.43 feet
along the West lIne of sald Section 28 to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing south 00°52'45" East, 325.00 fest along
sald West line of Sactlon 28; thence North 8949'30" East, 300.00 fest paraile! with the North one-sixteenth line of said Section
28; thence North 00%52'45" West, 325 00 feet parallel with the sald West line of sald Section 28; thence South 89°49'30% West,

300.00 feet parallel with sald North one-sixteenth line of Section 28 to the Polnt of Beginning.
Subject to the right of way of 4 Mile Road and Hammond Road.

The Property that is the subject of this Option Agreement is described as:

That part of the North ¥ of the Northwest Y4, Section 28, T27N, R10W, East Bay Township,
Grand Traverse County, Michigan, described as:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of the East % of the Northeast ¥ of the Northwest %; thence
West along the South line of the North ¥ of the Northwest ¥ of said section to the southeasterly
Right-of -Way Line of the existing Consumers Power Company Right-of-Way recorded at Liber
200 Page 499, Grand Traverse County Records; thence Northeasterly along said Right-of-Way to
the West line of said East ¥ of the Northeast % of the Northwest % of said section 28; thence

68




South along said West line to the Point of Beginning. This is referred to herein as the Triangular
Parcel.

Excepting and reserving to Optionor herein, their successors and assigns, any and all oil, gas and
any and all associated hydrocarbons, and mineral rights including but not limited to underground
storage rights and rights pertaining thereto.

Notwithstanding, any sub-surface activities on the Property, shall not be allowed which may
interfere or threaten to interfere with, pose any present or future risk, or be hazardous to the
Optionee’s, its successors, licensees, lessees or assigns facilities, or to the construction,
operation, or maintenance activities of said facilities. unless demonstrated Geologically that such
will not interfere or threaten to interfere with, pose any present or future risk, or be hazardous to
the Optionee’s, its successors, licensees, lessees or assigns facilities or operations. Such sub-
surface activities are limited to any and all oil, gas and any and all associated hydrocarbons, and
mineral rights including but not limited to underground storage rights and rights pertaining

thereto.

It is understood that the Optionor, their successors and assigns, shall not drill any wells or set any
surface equipment within the confines of the Property; nor shall the Optionor, their successsors
and assigns, enter upon, or use the surface of the Property for any purpose whatsoever.,

The Property includes and is together with a non exclusive right-of-way easement for
ingress/egress only, and an exclusive easement, subject to the existing Consumers Power
Company right-of-way easement, for utilities and the right to lay and maintain lines for
transmitting and distributing electricity and communications consisting of poles, wires, cables,
conduits and other fixtures and appurtenances along, over, under and within the south 66 feet of
the North % of the Northwest V4 lying West of the Southeasterly right-of-way line of, and subject
to, the existing Consumers Power Company right-of-way. This right of way easement is to run
from Four Mile Road to the Triangular Parcel.

With regards to types of poles installed within the 66 feet right-of-way easement, preference
shall be given to the use of standard wood poles or laminated wood poles within the right-of-way
easement, Final selection shall be made by Optionee, its successors or assigns, based on the
preference for use of wood poles or laminated wood poles, design requirements, and permit
requirements. Optionee shall review with the property owner (Optionor), or her Heirs,
Successors, and Assigns on pole placement and types of poles placed with the easement prior to
any construction.

This right-of-way easement shall include the full right and authority of Optionee, its successors,
licensees, lessees or assigns and their agents and employees, to enter at all times upon said
premises for the purpose of constructing, repairing, removing, replacing, improving, enlarging
and maintaining such cables, conduits and poles and other supports, with all necessary braces,
guys, anchors, foundations, manholes and transformers, and stringing thereon and supporting and
suspending there from lines of wire, cables, or other conductors for the transmission and
distribution of electrical energy and/or communications, and to trim, remove, destroy or
otherwise control any trees and brush which may, in the opinion of Optionee, interfere or

69




threaten to interfere with or be hazardous to the construction, operation and maintenance of said
lines. Itis expressly understood that no buildings or other structures will be placed by Optionor
within the easement. It is further expressly understood that non-use or limited use of the
easement by Optionee shall not prevent Optionee from later making use of the easement to the

full extent herein authorized.

Further, together with a grading easement, within, and subject to, the Consumers Power
Company right-of-way adjacent to the above-described Triangular Parcel. This easement shall
specifically permit Optionee to cut and fill slopes, grade and build retaining devices in the
manner it deems necessary, and at its discretion, shall extend to the removal of trees, shrubs and
vegetation. It shall specifically allow soil erosion control measures. Once properly graded,
Optionor agrees not to disturb or change the grading without Optionee’s consent.

Tax Parcel # 28-03-228-005-00 pt.

If this Option is exercised, the parties agree to substitute a surveyed legal description for the
above description in the deed, easements and all closing documents.

/0




ATTACHMENT B

Attached to and made a part of the Option Agreement between Patricia C. Groleau, as
“Optionor,” and the Traverse City Light and Power Department, a Michigan municipal electric

utility, as “Optionee.”
License to Enter Real Property

Optionor hereby grants unto Optionee, its agents, contractors, successors and assigns, a
license, during the Option Period (or any extension thereof), to enter upon the Property
and the Parent Parcel to the extent necessary to perform such surveys, soil borings, and
environmental tests (including but not limited to soil and water testing) as Optionee deems
necessary or desirable. Optionee shall have the right to utilize such equipment as is
customary and reasonably necessary to conduct such surveys, soil borings, and
environmental tests. No trees shall be cut during such testing operations except minor
trimming as may be necessary for line of sight or for access to a specific testing location.
However, should trees need to be removed or cut, Optionor’s prior written consent shall be
obtained by Optionee. Any damages to the surface of the Property or the Parent Parcel
caused by Optionee’s surveys, soil borings, and environmental tests shall be restored by
Optionee, at Optionee’s sole expense, to as near its original condition as is reasonably
practical,

The Property and Parent Parcel are described in Attachment A.

pe

Granted the 7 - “Hay of , 2010, by

Optionor

'Ko&z'a'ﬂw < //74«ou/¢ Ctoe—

Patricia C. Groleau

/1




ATTACHMENT C
EASEMENT

This Easement, made this day of , 2010,

WITNESSETH: Patricia C. Groleau, a widowed woman, of 4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse
City, Michigan 49686, (Grantor); for and in consideration of one dollar and No/100 Dollars ($ 1.00)
paid to the Grantor, receipt and sufficiency is heteby acknowledged, does grant and warrant to
Traverse City Light and Power Department, a Michigan municipal electric utility, of 1131
Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686, (Grantee); its successors and assigns, the following
non exclusive easement for ingress and egress only and exclusive easement, subject to the existing
Consumers Power Company right-of-way easement, to lay, construct, maintain, operate, repair,
substitute, remove, enlarge, inspect and replace public and private utilities in, through, along,
beneath, over, and across, the following described land in the Township of East Bay, County of
Grand Traverse and State of Michigan, viz:

Tlegal description of Groleau easement]

The easement granted hereby is Sixty-Six (66) feet wide. It is for ingress and egress and for public
and private utility purposes including, but not limited to, the right to lay, construct, maintain, operate,
repair, substitute, remove, enlarge, inspect and replace electric transmission and distribution lines
and communication lines with the customary services, poles, guys, cabinets, connections, manholes,
foundations, and related accessories. Grantee shall also have the right to trim, remove, destroy or
otherwise control any trees and brush within the easement which may, in the opinion of Grantee,
interfere or threaten to interfere with or be hazardous to the construction, operation and maintenance
of said lines or other facilities. Also, being conveyed to Grantee is the right to trim, remove, destroy
or otherwise control any trees within an additional 10 feet wide strip of land lying next to and
parallel to the north side of the Sixty-Six (66) feet wide easement described above which may, in the
opinion of Grantee, interfere or threaten to interfere with or be hazardous to the construction,
operation and maintenance of said lines or other facilities.

Non-use or limited use of this easement shall not prevent Grantee from later using this easement to
its fullest extent. '

Grantor, her heirs, successors and assigns, shall retain ingress/egress rights and may use the
easement area for activities which do not interfere with Grantee’s activities or full use thereof,

12




Grantee shall not be responsible to pay for or repair damages caused by Grantee in the proper use
of its easement to its fullest extent. Grantee shall not be responsible to maintain, make
improvements, or in any way contribute financially for such items that are for the benefit of
Grantor, her heirs, successors or assigns. Grantor may make at-grade improvements for
ingress/egress which do not interfere or threaten to interfere with Grantee, its successors,
licensees, lessees or assigns and their agents and employees from later using this easement to its
fullest extent. Any improvement made in violation of this provision may be removed by Grantee
and the cost of removal and restoration shall be the responsibility of the party causing or making

the improvement.

The Grantor agrees that no buildings or other permanent structures will be placed within the
boundaries of said easement, or within the additional 10 feet wide strip of land lying next to and
parallel to the north side of the Sixty-Six (66) feet wide easement.

Any sub-surface activities on the easement, shall not be allowed which may interfere or threaten
to interfere with, pose any present or future risk, or be hazardous to the Grantee’s, its successors,
licensees, lessees or assigns facilities, or to the construction, operation, or maintenance activities
of said facilities, unless demonstrated geologically that such will not interfere or threaten to
interfere with, pose-any present or future risk, or be hazardous to the Grantee’s, its successors,
licensees, lessees or assigns facilities or operations. Such sub-surface activities are limited to
any and all oil, gas and any and all associated hydrocarbons, and mineral rights including but not
limited to underground storage rights and rights pertaining thereto.

It is understood that the Grantor, her successors and assigns, shall not drill any wells or set any
surface equipment within the confines of the easement.

The exact boundaries are [to be agreed upon by the patties before substantial construction starts and
a survey at Grantee’s expense shall be recorded showing the permanent easement route. The
easement is intended to run from Four Mile Road to the Triangular Parcel.

This easement is appurtenant to the following described land in the Township of East Bay, County of
Grand Traverse and State of Michigan, viz:

[legal description of Triangular Parcel]

This easement shall include the full right and authority of Grantee, its successors, licensees,
lessees or assigns and their agents and employees, to enter at all times upon said premises for
ingress and egress to the substation property for public and private utility purposes.

Grantee shall give preference to the use of standard wood poles or laminated wood poles for
overhead structures placed within the Sixty-Six (66) feet wide easement. Final selection will be
made by Grantee based on the preference for use of wood or laminated wood poles, design
requirements and permit requirements. Grantee shall review with the Grantor, her heirs, successors
or assigns, pole placement and types of poles placed within the easement prior to construction.

/3




Grantee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns
from any claims, actions, demands or suits, including but not limited to environmental matters,
for damage or injury to persons or property based on or attributed to the activities of Grantee or
its agents or employees on the subject lands.

By:  Patricia C. Groleau

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF GRAND TRAVERSE)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,
2010, by Patricia C. Groleau.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
My Commission Expires:
Acting in County
Prepared by: When recorded return to:
W. Peter Doren Preparer

Sondee, Racine & Doren
310 W. Front Street, Ste. 300
Traverse City, MI 49684

74




, .
(T CERTIRCATE OF SURVEY ML
R . . 8058833
Patricia C. Groleau 14024331
4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, Ml 49696
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R10V, 20115-00036
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN G STATE OF MICHYGAN
RAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

I, the undersigned, being a Professional Surveyor, hereby certify that | have surveyed and mapped

" . o RECORDED
the ab | of lond, that the ratio of closure of the unadjusted field observations is noted,
on?i (:vitolrii ‘Ij:nrr(i: :nd that | have fully c::omp[ied with the regulations of Act 132, PA. 1970 os 10/07/2011 3:38 PM PAGE 10F2
amended. The bosls for bearings is: Michigan Sfate Plane Coordinate System, PEGGY HAINES REGISTER OF DEEDS
(NADB3) (CORSS5), Centrgl Zon
Error of Closure is 1:5800'+,
A «
David P. Gilette 7 Ps. #41916 )
T
I | NORTH — SOUTH 1/4 LINE
SO1*10'56" W 2665.32°
" . 1332.66' T S T T
North 1/4 Corner §§ ’/
Section 28, T27N, R10W <
G.T. Co. Remon (L003, P435) A\ Ci%TgRACPCOESPTTE%OLIJgD
N4OW 18.17' Found Spike in 5" Ash PP .
| % / {1 N75E 10.98' Found Spike in 6" Twin Mople S84°03217W 11.99
@ / S20°E 20.05" Found Spike in 16" Ash ] FROM INTERSECTION OF
| § S41W 30.69" Found Spike in 14" Ash |

/ 1| EAST UNE OF THE WEST 1/2 Monument Found
/ / / OF THE NORTHEAST 1/2 OF N67°43'52""E 6.04’

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 From 1/16 Corner
,/ L S01°05°03"'W 1333.30'
NN, /

813.89°

2602.55°
P T— —
\\}Z\
a2
. €0
Y
& 3
D
<o
=
5
N
S°
2593.42'

& PARCEL "A"
6.59 ACRES

— — 133523 — — __ —— T
r Z S00°47°29" W 27045 L

C/L Four Mile Road (66°)

3

g

= (7 7 w©

z & EE S % %/k‘%’x/é;, % . <

1 e e % P

g g I

: / - By, TONER % SCALE -

S [N RS % e
a / ! '7,!; O!

£ L—-!% — —— i S

= 7 T e T -

3 % NO0°59'11"E 2667.88

5 | | Y, WEST 1/8 UNE Q\PO'NT OF S$
2 % & BEGINNING N
g PROPOSED 66-FOOT EASEMENT : €N N

g W FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS AND % I
R FOR THE INSTALLATION AND

g O MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC UTILITIES L] N |

& ~ o

- & | & TOWER

g @ REMAINDER PARCEL &

e ‘ l 50.85 ACRES 85 ,
: sl 2

3 o Northwest Corner :3 I
E: ! = Section 28, T27N, R10W Rl E

i < GT. Co. Remon (L003, P439) - ]

£ || NSSE 6346' Found Nl in NW foce of 18" Basswood / T ettt Lomer

5 S22°C 68.32' Found Spike in W face of Power Pole 193.80' &T. Co. Remon (L063 P850)

= ‘ , S43W 115.70' Found Spike in SE face of Power Pole N78% 74.12' Post

> S57W 60.39" Found Spike in S foce of Light Pole N15 174,10 Power Pole ]
ol 1 S00°47°29"W SBXE 32.91" Found Iron & Cop #13030
*§: ‘ w 325.00 = S45W 101.10° Poyer Pole ,
s | S 85 ot or

S .

2 I , 2|8 8l& BEGINNING

3 . 2 66’

.y T 81843 — -4 sy [= alecul

¢ |
s

Q.

>

L]

A

=

LEGEND Date: 11/11/2010 oo
HONUKENT FOUND (R)  RECORDED Scale: AS NOTED - * Englneers
IRON FOUNO O IRON SET Drawn: WA Gosling Gzubal S
NAIL FOUND A NAL SET ChK'd: JAJ, e e pepees, Inc. * Enviranmental
WOOD STAKE FOUND 1 WOOD STAKE SET Rev. g , Tverse Gy, M 43685-5507 - Landscape
A - 231~9¢6—§‘9\- 502—958-1062 Architecture
Job No.: 2010720.02 Sheet: 1 of 2 Fox: 231-941-4603




CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, Ml 49696
NORTH 1/2 OF THE Nw 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R10W,
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

~Dato\TCL&P Topography\drg\Certified Survey Groleau.dwg Tab: Sheet 2 Saved by: magraf 09/13/11, 5:18pm Flatted by: magraf 09/14/11, 2:220m

\—

DESCRIPTION = PARCEL A"

Part of the North 1/2 of ihe Northwaest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse
Counly, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Seclion 28; fhence olong the West fine of said ssction SO0°47'29"W 1335.23 fesl fo
the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along sald 1/8 fine SB8%24'26"E 1238.30 feet to the Point of Baginning; thence porallsl
with and 50.00 fee} to the Southeast of the cenferline of an existing overhead electric fransmission line right-of~way (recorded in
Liber 200, Page 439) N42°21°25"E 490.70 feel; and NAZ’12'09°E SB2.48 fest o the East fine of the West 1/2 of tha Northeast 1/4
of the Northwest 1/4 of soid Sectlon 28; thencs along sald East line SO105'03"W 813,89 feet to said North 1/8 iine; thence along
said 1/8 line NB8°2426"W 706.76 feet fo the Point of Baginning, containing 6.59 acres of land, more or less.

Together with a proposed easement, £6.00 fest in width, for Ingress and egress and for the installation and maintenance of public
utilities described as follows:

Part of the North 1/2 of ihe Northwest 1/4 of Sectlon 28, Township 27 Norih, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully dascribed as follows:

Commencing at the Norlhwest Corner of said Seckion 28; thence along the Wast iine of sald section SO0P47'29" "W 1335.23 feal to
the North 1/8 line of sald section and the Point of Beginning; thence 66.00 fast North of and contiguous with the following
described line: along the North 1/8 line of said section SBE°24'26"E 1238.30 fost fo the Point of Ending, the sidelines of the
above sasement shorien or lengihen fo originate of the West line of sald Sectlon 28 and fo terminate of a lina bsaring N42°21°25"E
from the Point of Ending.

PARENT PARCEL DESCRIPTION

From First American Tifle Insurance Company Commilment No. TC~09-3088
The North one-half of the Nerthwest one-quarler of Section 28, Town 27 North, Ranga 10 Wast

EXCEPT, that part of the North one—holf of the Northwest one~quarter lylng with in the following parcel described as lying Southerly
of a Counly Read, more fully described as: Commencing af the North quarter corner of said Section 28; thence North B3°14' West,
442.00 feot along the North line of said Seclion 28 to the center ling of county road and the Point of Beginning; thence
Southeasterly, 215,79 feet along sald center line and the arc of o 451,52 foot radius curve fo the right, the chord of which bears
South 75°3230" East, 213.75 feel; thence South 61°51° East, 217.01 feet, along the center line; thence Southeasterly, 217.06 feel
along sold cenler line and fhe orc of o 544.86 foof radius curve fo ihe lefl, the chord of which bears South 73%15'50" East,
215.65 fesl; thence South 84°40°40” East, 916.12 fest along the sald centerline; thence South 84°34'55" East, 211.87 feet along seid
center {ne to the East one-olghth line of sald section i thence South 0°25' East, 1032.67 fast along sald Eost ona-eighth line to
ihe North one-eighth line of sald Section 28; thence Norih 89°14°25" West, 1288.10 feel along sald North ons-sighth fine to the
North and South quarfer fine of sald Section 28; hence North 89°17'5¢" West, 650.94 feel along said North one-sighth Iine to the
west line of said East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarler; ihence north 0°00'25" Wesi, 1333.23 foet along sald
West line to sald North Sectlon line and center llne; thence South B9°14' East, 208.80 fesl, along sald North Secflon fine io the
Polnt of Beginning.

Also, EXCEPT, that part of the Northwest one~quarter of the Northwest ons~quarfer of Section 28, Town 27 North, Rangs 10 Waest,
mora fully described os: Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 28; thence South 00%52'45” East, 815.43 fset along the
West line of sald Section 28 to the Point of Beglnning; thence continuing south 00°52'45" Eost, 325.00 fest along soid West Iine of
Sectlon 28; thence Norih 89°49°30" East, 300.00 feet parallel with the North one-sixtesnth line of sald Section 28; thence North
00°52'45" West, 325.00 foot paraliel with the said West line of soid Saction 28; thence South 89°%49'30” West, 300.00 fest paralle]
with said North one-sixfsenth line of Section 28 fo the Point of Beginning.

Subject fo the right of way of 4 Mile Road and Hommond Road.

REMAINDER PARCEL DESCRIPTION

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Sectlon 28, Townshlp 27 North, Range 10 West, East Boy Township, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully described as’ follows:

Beginning at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence clong the West line of said saction SO0°47'29"W 816.43 feel; thence
S88°30°16°E 300,00 fest; thence SO0°47°29"W 325.00 feet; thence N88°30'16"W 300,00 feet fo scid West section ling; thence along
sald seciion line S00°47'29"W 193.80 feet to the Norih 1/8 line of said sectlon; thence along sald 1/8 line $88°24'26"E 1238.30
faol; thence parallel with and 50.00 feet o the Southsast of the cenferline of an exisling overhead elacirle fransmission fine
right-of-way (recorded In Libar 200, Page 499) N4Z°21'25"F 490.70 feol; and NAZ°12'09"E 582.48 fest to the East line of fhe West
1;2 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 28; thence along sald East fine NOT°05'03’E 519.41 feef fo the
North line of sald Section 28; thence along said Norih line N38°21'05"W 195191 feet fo the Polnt of Beginning, conlolning 50.85
acres of land, more or less.

Subjact fo the right of way of Four Mils Road and Hommond Road.

&
3
=~
S
g
S
8
<7
a.
Date: 11/11/2010 Engi
. TTET s * Engineers
pedes A5 NOTED & Gosling Gzuhal, (Senees
I englneering sclences, Inc. + Environmental
s Ly, | Serces
v averse City, - .
20-346-513] 800-968-1062 5’:2?,7}:‘:’,’5,8
Job No.: 201072002 Sheet: 2 of 2 Fox: 2319414603

76




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

TRAVERSE CIiTY

LIGHT & POWER

Ja
To: Light & Power Board i”? M

From: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 13, 2012
Subject: Engineering Services with GRP Engineering — East Side Substation

In November 2010, the Traverse City Light &Power Department entered into a board
approved contract with GRP Engineering, Inc. for professional engineering SUBSTATION
DESIGN services. As the design is nearly complete, staff has been in discussion with GRP
Engineering, Inc. regarding the need for additional professional construction management
services associated with construction and start-up of the substation.

Construction Management services will cover two phases of construction activities: Site
preparation followed by the physical substation and electrical installation.

Staff recommends adding additional professional construction management services to the
November 23, 2010 Agreement with GRP Engineering, Inc. regarding the East Side
Substation Project for a fee not to exceed $69,500.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )
THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO
ADD ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO THE NOVEMBER
23,2010 AGREEMENT WITH GRP ENGINEERING, INC., FOR AFEE NOT TO EXCEED
$69,500 INCLUDING EXPENSES FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES
FOR THE EAST SIDE SUBSTATION PROJECT; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY
COUNSEL;

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK
ORDERS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND
CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER
DEPARTMENT.

77




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board ;g (i
From: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 13, 2012
Subject: Engineering Services with GRP Engineering — East Side Transmission Line

Staff has been in discussion with GRP Engineering, Inc. for professional engineering
design and construction management services for the East Side 69kV Transmission Line

Project.

Work needs to proceed immediately to complete design, prepare construction bid
packages and procure material.

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with GRP Engineering, Inc. for professional
engineering design and construction management services for a total fee not to exceed
$145,000 for the East Side 69kV Transmission Line Project.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND
SECRETARY TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH
GRP ENGINEERING, INC., FORA TOTAL FEE NOT TO EXCEED $145,000 INCLUDING
EXPENSES FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE
EAST SIDE 69kV TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY
COUNSEL;

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK
ORDERS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND
CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER
DEPARTMENT. |

/8




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

¢St 197?

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board /227 2/

From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director

Date: March 6, 2012
Subject: Purchase of One 138/69kV 90/120 MVA Transformer — East Side Substation

Bids have been obtained for the purchase of one 138/69kV Power Transformer for the
East Side Substation Project. Bids were as follows:

Manufacturer Base Cost Total Evaluated Cost w/Losses Delivery Schedule

For 90/120 MIVA:

Delta Star $1,468,066 $1,753,650 30-36 weeks
Waukesha Electric  $1,438,041 $1,770,217 1% Quarter in 2013
ABB Kuhiman No Bid

OR

For 90/120/150 MVA.

Delta Star $1,524,566
Waukesha Electric  $1,579,288
ABB Kuhiman No Bid

$1,810,150
$1,868,504

30-36 weeks
1" Quarter in 2013

(Note: Base cost includes spare bushings and arrestors)

Staff will be prepared to discuss the two bid options shown above for either a 90/120 MVA
or 90/120/150 MVA transformer.

Staff recommends accepting either of the two low evaluated bids from Delta Star, Inc.
Waukesha Electric is not able to meet a 2012 delivery schedule requested in the bid.

79




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT WITH DELTA STAR, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF
$ : SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL; AND
FURTHER AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS
AND CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND
POWER DEPARTMENT.

80




150 9001:2008 CERTIFIED

DELTA STAR, INC.

3550 Mayflower Drive 4 Lynchburg, VA 24501 A (800) 368-3017
www.deltastar.com

SMALL BUSINESS PER THE U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
Traverse City, MI

A

Bid for Auto Transformer
A

Bid Due: February 29, 2012
A

DELTA STAR Quotation #120359

ORIGINAL

81




BID FORM

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT
NEW TRANSMISSION SUBSTATION - 90/120 MVA AUTO-TRANSFORMER

ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT
1.01  This Bid is submitted to:

Mr. Glen Dine

Traverse City Light & Power Departiment
1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, MI 49686

1.02  The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Buyer in the

form included in the Bidding Documents to furnish the Goods and Special Services as specified or indicated in the Bidding
Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of

the Bidding Documents,

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation to Bid and Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security., The Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 60 days after the
Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Buyer.

2.02 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of its failure to furnish the
Goods and Special Services in accordance with the schedule set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents, as set forth in the Agreement, that;

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, the other related data identified in the Bidding
Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged.

Addendum No. Addendum Date
N/A N/A

B. If specified, or if in Bidder’s judgment, any local condition may affect cost, progress or the furnishing of Goods and
Special Services, Bidder has visited the Point of Destination and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the local
conditions that may affect cost, progress, or the furnishing of Goods and Special Services.

C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress and the furnishing of Goods and Special Services.

D. Bidder has carefully studied and correlated the information known to Bidder, and information and observations
obtained from Bidder’s visits, if any, to the Point of Destination with the Bidding Documents,

E. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has
discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

F.  The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions

90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer 00400-2 10-0373.01




for furnishing the Goods and Special Services for which this Bid is submitted.

G. Bidder further represents that this Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed
individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association,
organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a
false or sham Bid; Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and Bidder
has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Bidder or over Buyer.

ARTICLE 4 - BASIS OF BID
4,01 Bidder will furnish the Goods in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):

ITEM 1 One (1) 90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer

BASE BID One million, four hundred fifty-nine thousand, five hundred fifty $1,459,550
(use words) (figures)

Base Bid includes delivery in 30-36 week from date of Notice of Award.

ITEM 2 Provide an extended five (5) year warranty.

Add/Deduct  Included at no additional charge. $ 0
(use words) (figures)

ITEM3  Alternate No.1 One (1) 90/120/150 MVA Auto-Transformer

BASE BID_One million, five hundred sixteen thousand, fifty dollars $ 1,516,050
(use words) (figures)

Base Bid includes delivery in 30-36 week from date of Notice of Award.

ITEM 4  Alternate No.2 — Provide one (1) spare 138kV primary Bushing.

Add/Deduct_Two thousand. eight hundred seventy-seven $ 2,877
(use words) (figures)

ITEM 5  Alternate No.3 — Provide one (1) spare 69kV secondary Bushing,

Add/Deduct One thousand, seven hundred eighty-three $ 1,783
(use words) (figures)

ITEM 6  Alternate No.4 — Provide one (1) spare 138kV primary Lightning Arrester.

Add/Deduct_Two thousand, five hundred ninety-four $ 2,594
(use words) (figures)

ITEM 7  Alternate No.5 — Provide one (1) spare 69kV secondary Lightning Arrester.

Add/Deduct One thousand, two hundred sixty-two $ 1,262
(use words) (figures)

ITEM 8 Pre-Diem Rate

The following per-diem rates will apply for field service representatives of which FOUR (4) days Total are
included in the base bid. This per-diem rate shall be used in adjustment of the base bid add/deduct for the actual

field time required for the Project.

90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer 00400-3 10-0373.01




Not Applicable Dollars ($ N/A )

ARTICLE 5 - TIME OF COMPLETION

5.01 Bidder agrees that the Goods shall be delivered to the Point of Destination and placed on Owners Concrete foundation
on (or within a period of 15 days prior to Novembey 7, 2012,

ARTICLE 6 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID
6.01 The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid:
A. Required Bid security in the form of a 5% Bid Bond,;

B. Preliminary transformer design data, in the form of the Bid Supplement.

ARTICLE 7 - DEFINED TERMS

7.01 The terms used in this Bid have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.
The significance of terms with initial capital letters is described in the General Conditions.

90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer 00400-4 10-0373.01

84




ARTICLE 8 - BID SUBMITTAL

8.01 This Bid submitted by:
Corporation Name: __Delta Star, Inc.

State of Incorporation: __Delaware

Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability): ___General Business

Name (typed or printed): _Ivan H. Tepper

Title: President

(CORPORATE SEAL)

-
7 -
Attest: Sﬁé&zl"éj/ééz______

(Signature of Corpbrate Secretary) Steve Jones

Business Address: 3550 Mayflower Drive
Lynchburg, VA 24501

Phone; 800-368-3017 Facsimile: 434-845-7089

SUBMITTED on _February 27 ,2012

90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer 00400-5 10-0373.01




DAMAGES FORM
BID BOND

Any singular reference to Seller, Surety, Buyer, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

SELLER (Name and Address):

Delta Star, Inc.
3550 Mayflower Drive
Lynchburg, VA 24501

SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business):

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
600 Red Brook Boulevard
Owings Mills, MD 21117

BUYER (Name and Address): Traverse City Light & Power Department
' 1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686

BID
Bid Due Date: FEBRUARY 29,2012
Project (Brief Description Including Location): New Transmission Substation
90/120 MV A Auto-Transformer Procurement
Traverse City, Michigan

BOND
Bond Number: N/A
Date (Not later than Bid due date): January 30, 2012
Penal Sum: Five Percent of Total Amount Bid 5%
(Words) (Figures)

Surety and Seller, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative.

SELLER SURETY
Delta Star, inc. (Seal) Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland {Seal)
Seller’s Name and Corpora /e Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
a M %LM@% Byw AL bas.

Slgnature and Title lvan/ Tepper: President Signatur ahd Title * Michele Alban; Attorney-in-Fact

(Attach Hower of Attorney) ﬂ %L’?
Attest: ﬂ@w Attest: AL

i Marlapg). COlett: Wit
Signature and Title o év e Jones, CFO Signature an9"T1tle a Q.D’@ itness

Note: Above addresses are to be used for giving required notice.

90/120 MVA Auto-Transformer 00435-1 10-0373.01




AUTO - TRANSFORMER SPECIFICATION

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

CUSTOMER: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

SPEC: 16272

PG:

120359-1

DATE: February 23, 2012

INQ: 10-0373.01
RATING: 3 PHASE 60 HERTZ
CLA - ONAN/ONAF HV - WDG (H) LV - WDG (X) TV - WDG (Y)
55 °C 90/120 MVA 90/120 MVA 16.5/22 MVA
65 °C 100.8/134.4 MVA 100.8/134.4 MVA 18.5/24.6 MVA
138GrdY/79.67 69GrdY/39.84 9.2
2 @2.5%F.C. +16 @ 0.625% R.C. NONE
650 350
110 110
34 34
251
217
7 H-X 4 XY 5.5 H-Y

PERFORMANCE DATA @ 75 °C

90
80

100
110

0.4 32.4
0.8 471

139 1771’.4 99.8

99.83

99.85

0.39

99.81

337 | 446

80

ATL2A1

APPROXIMATE DIMENSIONS IN INCH

EIGH

100 X 227

ES AND WEIGHTS IN POUNDS (NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION)

135,900

284,400

270,400

183,700

Job#: B120359-1

By: ARS

Data: 2/23/2012 9:24:49 AM

Tool: 8.7

Page 1 of 1 Rev: 0




i

il S my
N N HV LIGHTNING
ARRESTERS
n WHEN REQUIRED
MG S S
C H1 A2 H3
© H
HOXO AN X1 A\ X2 A X3 -
LGN e oL
L | %i; Lﬁ; —_— LV LIGHTNING
V T ARRESTERS
WHEN REQUIRED
i
| OIL PRESERVATION
| | | | SYSTEM AND GAGES
[ , : . PER SPEC.
) L\\ | s e e f)
A LTC
D
CONTROL
CABINET
CONTROL
CABINET OO
1= 0 =N
B |

SEE AUTO-TRANSFORMER SPECIFICATION

SHEET FOR DIMENSIONS . TITLE TRANSFORMER OUTLINE PG. 1
(NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION) [INCH, LBS] OF 1
DWN. SCALE
BY wrm NONE ATL2A1 0
CKD. DATE )
BY 08/08/08 DRAWING NO. RE%

A

DELTA STAR, INC.

LYNCHBURG OPERATION
35560 MAYFLOWER DR LYNCHBURG, VA 24506

(434) 845-0921




AUTO - TRANSFORMER SPECIFICATION

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

Cuo‘MER: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
INQ: 10-0373.01

SPEC: 16272

PG:

120359-1A

DATE: February 23,2012

RATING: 3 PHASE 60 HERTZ

HV - WDG (H)

LV - WDG (X)

TV - WDG (Y)

CLASS | ONAN/ONAF/ONAF

90/120/150 MVA

16.5/22/27.5 MVA

55 °C 90/120/150 MVA
65 °C 100.8/134.4/168 MVA | 100.8/134.4/168 MVA 18.5/24.6/30.8 MVA
138GrdY/79.67 69GrdY/39.84 9.2
+2 @ 2.5% F.C. +16 @ 0.625% R.C. BURIED
650 350
110 110
34
251
217
7 H-X

90 100
90 110

PERFORMANCE DATA @ 75 °C

32.4
47.1

0.4
0.8

139

171.4 99.8

99.83

99.85 | 99.81

446

0.39 3.37

100 X 227 ‘

APPROXIMATE DIMENSIONS IN INCHES AND WEIGHTS IN POUNDS (NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION)

135,900

304,900

276,900 |

183,700

272

i

Job#: B120359-1A

By: ARS

Data: 2/23/2012 8:19:32 AM

Tool: 8.7

Page 1 of 1 Rev: 0

89




o

l
l

__{

\4/'
=
C 4‘

0 DD

HX X1 X X3
y‘oo@ 2‘ S 5

[NZ| \V'w\ ’ I

3

& =

o=

LV LIGHTNING

ARRESTERS
WHEN REQUIRED

OIL PRESERVATION
SYSTEM AND GAGES

HV LIGHTNING
ARRESTERS
WHEN REQUIRED

PER SPEC.
| “\ I
OS5
A LTC
D
CONTROL
CABINET
0O
4 = D = l
R
INC.

SYE AUTO-TRANSFORMER SPECIFICATION

SHEET FOR DIMENSIONS . TITLE TRANSFORMER OUTLINE PG. 1
(NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION) [INCH, LBS] OF 1
gl\:(VN. MS SCALE NONE ATL2A 0
CKD. DATE
BY 9/30/06 DRAWING NO. REV.

g\ DELTA STAR,
£-~\/ LYNCHBURG OPERATION

N\INCS/ 3550 MAYFLOWER DR LYNCHBURG, VA 24506

(434) 845-0921

90




Delta Star, Inc.

3550 Mayflower Drive ¢ Lynchburg, VA 24501 270 Industrial Road ¢ San Carlos, CA 94070
Telephone (434) 845-0921 € Toll Free (800) 368-3017 Telephone (650) 508-2850 ¢ Toll Free (800) 892-8673

TRANSFORMER WARRANTY
FIVE YEAR UNLIMITED WARRANTY

Delta Star, Inc. warrants to the purchaser that the transformer, together with all parts included in the
original purchase, is free of defects in workmanship and materials.

This warranty extends for 60 months after shipment from the factory. It covers any defects and
malfunction of the transformer except that which may occur because of vandalism, improper installation,
handling, operation, or for any cause other than defects in workmanship and materials. The method and
extent of repairs to be made rests solely with Delta Star.

During the warranty period, prior to the expiration the warranty is conditional upon the customer
notifying Delta Star, Inc. of any claim related within 60 days of when the customer knew or should have

known of such a claim.,

This warranty does not cover the cost of removal from the site and reinstallation after repair, and costs
resulting from the moving of structures or associated equipment are excluded. The seller, Delta Star, Inc,,
shall not be liable for special, indirect, or consequential damages, and this warranty is in lieu of all
warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose or other warranties expressed or implied,
and the remedies of the customer herein provided fulfill all liabilities of Delta Star, whether in warranty,

negligence, contract, or otherwise.

Unless otherwise agreed, the transformer will be shipped f.o.b. destination, prepaid. Shipments will be
by mutually agreed upon means (e.g., truck) to site specified by customer, provided no unusual
circumstances unknown to Delta Star occur (no roads, impassable conditions or extreme grades).
Customer agrees to inspect transformer within 48 hours of arrival at destination and notify both Delta
Star Inc. and the carrier of any observable damage or irregularity,. NOTIFICATION SHALL BE
ACCOMPLISHED BY COMPLETING AND RETURNING DELTA STAR INC's FORM F-CA-2011

(2/19/08) (Inspection Receipt Summary).

THE SELLER SHALL IN NO EVENT BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES. THE SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED,
EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN,

REV 1-2-09

91




Delta Star, Inc.

3550 Mayflower Drive ¢ Lynchburg, VA 24501 270 Industrial Road ¢ San Carlos, CA 94070
Telephone (434) 845-0921 $Toll Free (800) 368-3017 Telephone (650) 508-2850 ¢ Toll Free (800) 892-8673

STORAGE POLICY

Delta Star, Inc. has limited facilities for storing new transformers. In the event that delivery
cannot be accepted upon completion of manufacture, Delta Star, Inc. will store the unit for 30
days free from the acknowledged ship date. The storage facilities are intended for short term
storage only, therefore higher rates apply for storage exceeding six months.

1.

Storage is contingent upon the factory storage space available at time of request.
The unit will be invoiced on the acknowledged ship date.

It is required that Delta Star, Inc. receive a signed Request for Storage prior to placing
any equipment into storage. “Notification” to Delta Star, Inc. is defined as receipt of a
signed Request for Storage at our offices. (An email is acceptable.)

An initial one time set up charge in the amount of $6,000.00 will apply to prepare the unit
for storage and remove and prepare for shipment.

One-half percent of the unit price shall be charged for each month, or portion of month,
of storage. The minimum charge for storage shall be $1,500.00 per month. After six
months in storage the monthly rate increases to one percent of the unit price ($3,000.00

per month minimum).
Terms of payment are Net 30 Days from date of invoice.

If there are any increases in freight and/or offloading rates, material and field services
based on the invoice from the time the equipment is invoiced to the time it is actually
shipped, customer will be invoiced for the additional costs.

Delta Star, Inc. requests four weeks advance notification for shipping out of storage to
insure shipping preparations are completed in time to meet the designated ship date.

Title passes to Purchaser at the time the equipment is placed into storage, however Delta
Star, Inc. will insure the equipment from damage until it is received and accepted at the
destination as originally quoted. Warranty starts upon arrival at the destination or six
months after completion of manufacture, whichever occurs first.

Effective 8/11/08

92




Delta Star, Inc.

3550 Mayflower Drive ¢ Lynchburg, VA 24501
Telephone (434) 845-0921 ¢Toll Free (800) 368-3017

CANCELLATION POLICY
*Prior to Scheduled Cancellation
Ship Date Charge

30 - 59 Days —————+ 100% (Purchase Order)
60 -89 Days ——» 50%
90 - 119 Days ——» 35%
120 - 149 Days —— » 25%
150-179Days —_, 15%

180+ Days — . 10%

*Ship date is the date requested by the customer on the purchase
order and acknowledged by Delta Star, Inc. Should these dates
be different, Delta Star’s acknowledged date will be the official
ship date.

Note: Delta Star, Inc. may add any extra ordinary charges, such
as but not limited to material that cannot be cancelled, etc.

93




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

Q,ST- 19]?

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board ;z{z

From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 6, 2012
Subject: Purchase of three 138kV CT/PT Metering Units — East Side Substation

Bids have been obtained for the purchase of three 138kV combination current/voltage
transformers required for metering at the East Side Substation Project. Bids were as
follows:

Manufacturer Total Price
ALSTOM $ 55,365
TRENCH $ 58,905

Staff recommends accepting the low bid from ALSTOM Grid, Inc. in the amount of
$55,365.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE
ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF $55,365 TO ALSTOM GRID, INC. FOR THREE 138KV
CURRENT/VOLTAGE TRANSFORMERS FOR THE EAST SIDE SUBSTATION.

94




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2012

¢St 1972

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board ;;J &
From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director
Date: March 6, 2012

Subject: Purchase of Two 69kV 50KVA Transformers — East Side Substation

Bids have been obtained for the purchase of two 69kV 50KVA transformers. Bids were as
follows:

Manufacturer Total Price
ABB Kuhiman $ 71,600
ITEC 3 No Bid

Staff recommends accepting the bid from ABB/Kuhiman in the amount of $71,600.
If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORTOISSUEA PURCHASE
ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF $71,600 TO ABB KUHLMAN FOR TWO 69KV 50KVA
TRANSFORMERS FOR THE EAST SIDE SUBSTATION.

95




